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Five-Year Financial Summary

[CHF million) 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
Bookings 229.8 232.1 156.6 153.0 155.2
Order backlog 95.3 80.2 34.3 28.2 25.6
Revenue from sale of goods 209.6 183.4 148.2 148.5 155.0
Gross profit 109.5 98.6 79.6 79.6 82.8
EBITDA 44.9 36.9 23.2 16.9 18.7
EBIT 39.3 31.0 17.3 10.8 15.2
Profit before income tax 38.8 30.5 16.4 10.1 15.1
Net profit for the year 28.2 22.0 12.1 6.1 10.7
Depreciation and amortization 5.6 5.9 5.9 6.1 8.5
Additions to property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets 3.2 2.6 4.0 3.9 3.6
Additions to right-of-use assets 1.9 1.7 4.3 9.0 -
Trade receivables 35.8 31.2 27.3 26.7 29.0
Inventories 43.3 34.0 28.1 23.9 29.7
Net working capital 64.2 32.4 26.9 28.4 35.7
Current assets 158.2 141.3 125.0 102.8 112.6
Property, plant and equipment 8.7 8.6 9.8 9.5 10.7
Right-of-use-assets 6.0 6.9 8.4 6.3 =
Intangible assets 8.1 8.6 8.2 73 6.5
Net cash position 49.2 66.8 62.5 46.0 47.8
Fixed deposits 15.5 - = = =
Current liabilities 44.8 42.1 5.7 28.5 29.0
Non-current liabilities 8.7 10.8 13.9 12.8 9.3
Total equity attributable to the owners of

Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG 131.9 116.2 106.2 90.3 97.5
Total liabilities and equity 185.3 169.1 155.7 131.6 135.8
ROE (Return on equity) 21.4% 19.0% 11.4% 6.7% 11.0%
Number of employees (average) 1103 1056 1033 1088 1126

Alternative Performance Measures (APM)

Definitions for all APM are included on our website available at:
www.carlogavazzi.com/en/investors/alternative-performance-measures.html
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Carlo Gavazzi Group

Carlo Gavazzi is an international group
active in designing, manufacturing

and marketing electronic equipment
targeted at the global markets

of industrial and building automation.
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Letter to the Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

As a result of the recovery from the effects of the pandemic, Carlo Gavazzi achieved a strong result
in the 2022/23 business year, despite the negative consequences of the war in Ukraine, continued
strong inflation, increasing interest rates and the negative consequences for the global economy.
Revenue from sale of goods, EBIT and net income grew by double digit rates. The Group's very
sound financial position was maintained.

On the back of solid sales in key markets and ongoing launches of new products, the Group's revenue
from sale of goods increased by 20.1% in local currency while bookings grew by 4.2%. Revenue from
the sale of goods in Swiss Francs grew by 14.3 % to CHF 209.6 million (CHF 183.4 million in 2021/22)
while bookings decreased by 1.0% to CHF 229.8 million (CHF 232.1 million in 2021/22), resulting in
a book-to-bill ratio of 1.1 at March 31, 2023. Bookings were lower in the second half of the year than
in the first semester.

Gross profit increased by CHF 10.9 million to CHF 109.5 million (CHF 98.6 million in 2021/22),
corresponding to a gross margin of 52.2%. Thanks to continued cost control, operating expenses
increased less proportionately than revenue from sale of goods, from CHF 67.7 million in the previous
year to CHF 69.8 million, notwithstanding the continuing investments in the business. In addition,
the Group continued to invest during the year in the ongoing development of the new ERP system
which is expected to be fully rolled out worldwide in the first half of the current business year.

Operating profit (EBIT) increased to CHF 39.3 million, compared to CHF 31.0 million in the previous
year (+26.8% versus 2021/22). The EBIT margin increased 1.9 percentage points to 18.8% (16.9%
in 2021/22). After considering financial expense of CHF 0.5 million and income taxes of CHF
10.5 million, the Group net profit for the year amounted to CHF 28.2 million (CHF 22.0 million in
2021/22), an increase of 28.2%.

At March 31, 2023, the total equity attributable to the owners of the Group stood at CHF 131.9 million
(CHF 116.2 million in 2021/22), giving an equity ratio of 71.2% (2021/22: 68.7%) with a net cash
position of CHF 49.2 million. The Board of Directors will propose to the Annual Shareholders” Meeting
that the Company pays a dividend of CHF 12.00 per bearer share and CHF 2.40 per registered share
for the reporting period.

Geographical markets

Revenue from sale of goods in local currency grew at double-digit rates across Europe and the
Americas but decreased in Asia-Pacific.

In Europe, revenue from sale of goods recorded a strong growth rate at 26.5% versus the previous

year thanks to further strengthening of activities in energy efficiency in the Central and Southern
European countries and to a good performance in industrial automation in the whole area.
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Revenue from sale of goods in the Americas grew by 12.2% compared to the previous year, driven
by very good performance in the US and in Mexico with the implementation of effective sales
programs across the main strategic industries.

In Asia-Pacific, revenue from sale of goods decreased by 1.1% versus previous year mainly due to
manufacturing contraction in the Chinese market following local pandemic policies and increasing
trade barriers.

Concerning the geographical distribution, revenue from sale of goods outside Europe reached
31.2%, with the Americas and Asia-Pacific accounting for 19.0% and 12.2%, respectively.

Markets and products

Controls, the Group's largest product line, performed above the previous year thanks to a very
high contribution from energy management products, which grew by more than 50%. This
positive trend results from the increase in demand for energy monitoring products such as the
EM500 series in the e-mobility and electrification industries. Furthermore, “Internet of Things”
(I0T) products increased by more than 16% thanks to the improved penetration of the energy
and building efficiency market due to the newly launched UWP 4.0. This monitoring gateway and
controller provides an enhanced comprehensive solution for gathering information from meters
and sensors, storing data into its secure database and exchanging it with the local Building
Management Systems.

Sensors performed slightly above the previous year. A positive contribution came from inductive
sensors, which increased by more than 3% versus the previous year mainly due to the new
ICF family of products. Developed in the Danish competence center, these sensors have been
specifically designed to resist shocks, vibrations and impacts, high and low temperatures and
frequent washdown cycles. They are used by strategic OEM manufacturers of conveyor systems,
agricultural machines, industrial doors and metal works in general.

Switches grew by more than 24 % last year, driven by the solid-state relays RG platform across
all markets in industrial automation. The newly launched RL Series further enhances reliability
where panel space is restricted and unplanned machine downtime must be avoided. This applies
especially for plastic machines as well as food & beverage machines.

Strategy

The Group’s strategy remains centered on developing new and differentiated automated products
to accelerate the penetration in specific, increasingly growing industries worldwide.

Furthermore, the Groupis focused on continuous improvement of its business model, by embracing

excellence and improving its agility to changing market conditions. The main initiatives include
new products from engineering interactions with the leading OEMs of our strategic industries,
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improved channel and go-to-market strategies, the roll-out of the new global ERP system with
enhanced logistics and supply chain alignments, the re-allocation and duplication of production
capabilities, and ultimately the enhancement of customer service indicators worldwide.

Outlook

In full awareness of the acute geopolitics, inflationary economies and global supply chain
issues, Carlo Gavazzi Group believes that its commitment to developing continuous operational
excellence and anticipating core market trends will lead the Group to keep performing well
in the industrial and building automation markets. As adversity will persist in the foreseeable
future, our ability to adapt to changing conditions while increasing our presence in high growth
industries will generate a continuous favorable outcome of the Group’s results.

As many customers are currently tending to reduce their stocks, Carlo Gavazzi expects incoming
orders to slow down somewhat in the short term. The Group therefore does not expect the
same growth rate for the current year as in the 2022/23 business year. Nonetheless, increased
differentiation and investments in markets that require constant updates into value-innovation
will prove beneficial to maintain positive sales growth rates during the next three to five years
term. In an increasingly complex world, Carlo Gavazzi intends to accelerate investments to fulfil
customer requirements and to further develop our product offering and processes.

Acknowledgements

Carlo Gavazzi is well positioned in terms of financial stability, focused strategy, innovative
technology and long-term relationships with our very broad customer base. We are grateful to
have a dedicated team that is willing and able to successfully defend and further expand our
global market position. We would like to thank our employees for their untiring commitment, our
customers and business partners for their loyalty to Carlo Gavazzi, as well as our shareholders
for their continued trust in the management and the Board of Directors.

Daniel Hirschi Jean-Marc Théolier
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Review of Operations

Structure

The Group consists of our traditional core
business, Automation Components.

Currencies

As the Group operates in more than 20 countries
and generates 98.1% of its revenue from sale

of goods in currencies other than the Swiss
Franc, foreign exchange rate movements are of
importance. In the current year, the Euro average
rate decreased by 6.9 % against the Swiss Franc.
The negative currency effect for the Group for
the year in local currencies amounted to 4.8% on
bookings and revenue from sale of goods.

Bookings and backlog

Consolidated bookings decreased by

CHF 2.3 million or 1.0% from CHF 232.1 million

to CHF 229.8 million. Bookings exceeded operating
revenue by CHF 20.2 million for a book-to-bill ratio
of 1.1. Group order backlog at year-end amounted

to CHF 95.3 million or 45.5% of operating revenue,
corresponding to revenue of five months.

Revenue and gross profit margin

Revenue from the sale of goods increased by
CHF 26.2 million or 14.3% from CHF 183.4 million
to CHF 209.6 million while the gross profit margin
reduced from 53.7 % to 52.2 %.

Operating expenses

Thanks to continued cost control, operating
expenses increased less proportionately than
revenue from sale of goods by CHF 2.1 million from
CHF 67.7 million to CHF 69.8 million. Operating
expenses consist of R&D and selling, general and

administrative expenses (SG&AJ. R&D expenses
decreased by CHF 0.4 million from CHF 7.8 million to
CHF 7.4 million, whereas SG&A expenses increased
by CHF 2.5 million from CHF 59.9 million to

CHF 62.4 million. During the year, the Group invested
a further CHF 1.3 million in the development of

the new ERP system which went live for Europe in
December 2021.

EBIT

EBIT increased by CHF 8.3 million or 26.8% from
CHF 31.0 million to CHF 39.3 million. As a
percentage of operating revenue, EBIT amounted to
18.8% compared with 16.9% in the previous year.

Net financial income (expense] amounted to an
expense of CHF 0.5 million for exchange losses of
CHF 0.3 million and interest expense for lease
liabilities of CHF 0.2 million under the IFRS 16
Accounting Standard. Income tax expense amounted
to CHF 10.5 million.

Net profit for the year

Net profit for the year increased by CHF 6.2 million
or 28.2% from CHF 22.0 million to CHF 28.2 million
resulting in earnings per bearer share of CHF 39.71,
compared with CHF 31.00 in the previous year.
Return on equity amounted to 21.4 % compared with
19.0% in the previous year.

Balance sheet

Trade receivables increased by CHF 4.6 million from
CHF 31.2 million to CHF 35.8 million, corresponding
to a collection period of 61 days, compared with

60 days in the previous year. Inventories increased
by CHF 9.3 million from CHF 34.0 million to CHF
43.3 million, corresponding to a turnover rate of 2.3.
Net working capital increased by CHF 31.8 million
from 32.4 million to CHF 64.2 million, mainly due to
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investing CHF 15.5 million in fixed deposits. The net
cash position during the year decreased by

CHF 17.6 million to CHF 49.2 million, compared
with CHF 66.8 million in the previous year. Capital
expenditure amounted to CHF 3.2 million, compared
with CHF 2.6 million in the previous year.

Reconciliation of APM

Total equity attributable to the owners of the

Group increased from CHF 116.2 million to

CHF 131.9 million or 71.2% of total assets, after
net profit for the year of CHF 28.2 million, a
translation loss of CHF 4.3 million, dividend

payments of CHF 8.5 million and actuarial gains on
employee benefit obligations of CHF 0.3 million.

APM 2022/23 2021/22

Definition CHF million Page CHF million Page
Book-to-bill ratio

Bookings A 229.8 Cover 232.1 Cover
Revenue from sale of goods B 209.6 46 183.4 42
Book-to-bill ratio (A / B) 1.10 7 1.27 7
EBITDA

EBIT C 39.3 46 31.0 42
Depreciation and amortization D 5.6 49 5.9 45
EBITDA (C + D) 44.9 Cover 36.9 Cover
Equity ratio

Total equity attributable to owners of

Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG 131.9 47 116.2 43
Total assets 185.3 47 169.1 43
Equity ratio (E / F) 71.2% 7 68.7 % 7
Net cash position

Cash and cash equivalents G 49.2 47 66.8 43
Borrowings H 0.0 47 0.0 43
Net cash position (G - H) 49.2 Cover 66.8 Cover
Net working capital (NWC)

Total current assets I 158.2 47 141.3 43
Cash and cash equivalents J 49.2 47 66.8 43
Total current liabilities K 44.8 47 42.1 43
Borrowings L 0.0 47 0.0 43
NWC(I-J-K+L) 64.2 Cover 32.4 Cover
ROE (Return on equity)

Net profit for the year M 28.2 46 22.0 42
Total equity attributable to owners of

Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG N 131.9 47 116.2 43
Return on equity (M / N) 21.4% Cover 19.0 % Cover

CARLO GAVAZZ| GROUP
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Group Profile

Our mission

Carlo Gavazzi is an international group active in
designing, manufacturing and marketing state-of-
the-art components for the building and industrial
automation sectors.

Our structure

Under the umbrella of a publicly quoted holding
company, headquartered in Steinhausen,
Switzerland, Carlo Gavazzi operates its core
business, Automation Components. It is the function
of the holding company to ensure planning and
development of the Group’s business portfolio,
choose a coherent set of strategies and objectives,
monitor their implementation and the efficiency

of the corresponding management tools and
processes, select the upper-level management,
manage corporate finance, tax planning,
management information systems, communication
and investor relations. Automation Components
operates within the framework of defined strategies
and objectives; it is responsible for research and
development, manufacturing, quality, marketing
and sales, human resources, logistics, finance and
control. The Group CEO leads the Company in line
with Carlo Gavazzi Holding's objectives.

Our objectives

To provide our customers with technologically
innovative, high quality and competitive solutions

consistent with their requirements and expectations.

To create an environment conducive to our
employees’ professional and personal development.

To obtain a fair and equitable return for our
shareholders through sustained development of our
core activities.

Our principles

To create added value for our customers with
our products and services in order to strengthen
their market positions and establish long-term
partnerships.

To adapt structures and processes to market needs
and delegate responsibility.

To promote an environment conducive to mutual
respect and cooperation.

To mark clear leadership and integrity by doing what
we say.

Our core activities

Automation Components designs and manufactures
electronic control components for the global
building and industrial automation markets in its
ISO 9001 certified factories in Italy, Lithuania, Malta
and China. The products (sensors, monitoring
relays, timers, energy management systems,
solid-state-relays, electronic motor controllers,
safety devices and fieldbus systems) provide
automation solutions for the industrial and building
automation markets. Typical customers are original
equipment manufacturers of plastic-injection
molding machines, agriculture machines, food &
beverage production, conveying equipment, door
and entrance control systems, charging stations as
well as heating, ventilation, air conditioning devices
and manufacturing machinery. System integrators
and distributors are other effective channels to the
market. The products are marketed across Europe,
North America and Asia-Pacific through a network of
23 own sales companies and around 60 independent
national distributors.

12 CARLO GAVAZZI GROUP
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Our Strategy

Solution-packages for the strategic industries

Strategic Industries

Food & Beverage

Data Center

The Automation Pyramid

ERP: Enterprise Resources Planning

SCADA: Supervisory, Control and Data Acquisition
HMI: Human-Machine Interface

PLC : Programmable Logic Controller

DCS: Distributed Control System /
CNCs C ter N ic Control PLC. DCS, CNC, Industrials PC’ //
omputer Numeric Contro ndustrials PC’s /////

Fieldbuses

Sensors and Actuators
(Control Devices, Motors, Valves, etc.)

@ CORE BUSINESS

CARLO GAVAZZI GROUP

Mobile Equipment

Access Controls

Management
Level

Process
Management

Field Level
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Global Presence

- L

* 4 0 %

R&D AND MANUFACTURING CENTERS
LOGISTIC CENTERS

SALES AND MARKETING
INDEPENDENT DISTRIBUTORS

1 — Americas
1 Logistic center
4 Sales companies

4 Area managers




2 — EMEA
3 R&D competence centers
3 Manufacturing facilities
1 Logistic center
14 Sales companies

4 Regional offices

3 — Asia-Pacific
1 R&D competence center
1 Manufacturing facility
1 Logistic center
5 Sales companies

5 Regional offices
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Corporate Governance

Carlo Gavazzi Group

Carlo Gavazzi is committed to the
principles of good corporate
governance. The Carlo Gavazzi Group
shows responsibility in dealing with the
Interests of its various stakeholders,
which include shareholders,
employees, customers and the public.
Sound corporate governance principles
help to consolidate and strengthen
trust in the Group.

The following representations made by Carlo into account the Guideline on the Corporate
Gavazzi Holding AG (the "Company”, together Governance Directive (Guideline DCG) of SIX

with its subsidiaries “Carlo Gavazzi Group” or the Exchange Regulation AG, dated January 1, 2023.
“Group”), are in accordance with the Directive on The information is set out in the order required by
Information relating to Corporate Governance the DCG, with subsections being summarized to
(DCG]) of SIX Exchange Regulation AG dated the extent possible. Carlo Gavazzi Group's financial
January 1, 2023. To the extent not applicable or statements comply with IFRS reporting standards,
not material, information required by the directive and in certain sections readers are referred to the

is not mentioned. The representations also take financial statements and notes in this annual report.
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Corporate Governance

1. Group structure and shareholders

The operational Group structure is as follows:

Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG
Board of Directors, Steinhausen CH

Automation Components

R&D, Sourcing Companies
and National Sales Companies

There are no listed companies apart from the
Company being listed on SIX Swiss Exchange,
Security No. 1100359, ISIN No. CH00110035%4
(stock market capitalization CHF 220 320 100 as

of March 31, 2023, respectively CHF 198 288 090

as of March 31, 2022). For details regarding non-
listed companies, please refer to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company,
note 27 “Subsidiaries”, where all consolidated
subsidiaries of the Company are listed.

Major shareholders % of voting rights

March 31, 2023

Valeria Gavazzi, Zug (indirectly via
73.85%
4.95%

Barguzin Participation SA, Zug)

Uberta Gavazzi, Zug *

*) Uberta Gavazzi passed away on April 6, 2023; the shares are
currently controlled by Stefano Premoli Trovati, Executor of
the Estate of Uberta Gavazzi, Zug.

Reports concerning the disclosure of significant
shareholdings made to the Company and to the
Disclosure Office of the SIX Swiss Exchange can

be viewed via the link to the search facility on

the Disclosure Office's publication platform at
www.ser-ag.com/en/resources/notifications-
market-participants/significant-shareholders.html.
No new disclosures were published during the
financial year under review.

Apart from the shareholders mentioned above, there

are no other major shareholders known to the Group

holding more than 3% of the Company’s voting rights.
No cross-shareholdings exist.

2. Capital structure

The fully paid-up share capital of the Company
amounts to CHF 10 660 650, divided into 1 600 000
non-listed registered shares with a par value of

CHF 3 each [voting shares) and 390 710 bearer
shares with a par value of CHF 15 each [common
shares), which are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange.
All shares, irrespective of their par value, carry one
vote and each share is entitled to dividend payments,
the amount of which is determined based on the par
value of each such share. Further information on the
shares issued by the Company is available at
www.carlogavazzi.com/en/investors/shares.html.

For further details regarding the share capital of
the Company, refer to the Notes to the Financial
Statements of the Company, note 3 “Share Capital”
as well as to article 6 of the Articles of Association,
governing the exclusion of shareholders’ subscription
rights (the Articles of Association are available at
www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/files/6930b8b2b86
c52483ef5f9¢cab828ed9d (German only)). As of

March 31, 2023 the Company had no authorized
capital and no conditional capital. There were no
changes in the share capital, the authorized capital
and the conditional capital during the yearly reporting
period that ended on March 31, 2023 and the
preceding two financial years. The Company has not
issued any profit-sharing certificates (Genussscheine)
or participation certificates (Partizipationsscheine).
There are no restrictions on transferability or
registration of bearer shares. With regard to
registered shares, the purchaser has to provide to

the Company certain information and declare that he
purchased the shares in his own name and on his own
account (“trustee registration”] as further set out in
article 5 of the Articles of Association. In accordance
with article 14 of the Articles of Association, the
limitations on transferability of registered shares as
well as the cancellation of privileges can be canceled
by the AGM by absolute majority of the votes cast (the
Articles of Association are available in German at
www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/files/6930b8b2b8
6c52483ef5f9cab828ed9d). There are no convertible
bonds or options issued by the Company or any of

its subsidiaries with respect to the shares of the
Company.
www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/files/
6930b8b2b86c52483ef5f9cab828ed9d

CARLO GAVAZZI GROUP 19



Corporate Governance

Board of Directors

3. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors currently comprises five members.

CHAIRMAN / NON-EXECUTIVE
(FROM JULY 27, 2022)
DANIEL HIRSCHI

Born March 19, 1956
Swiss national, Biel
First elected 2010,
elected until 2023

- Graduated as an engineer

in Biel, Switzerland

Attended AMP/SMP Advanced
Management Program at Harvard

Business School

- Developed his professional career
during 23 years in Saia Burgess,
a Swiss industrial company
in the electro mechanical and
electronics field

- CEO of Saia Burgess from 2001
until 2006

- Bearer shareholders’
representative of Carlo Gavazzi
Holding AG from 2010 until 2022

20

VICE-CHAIRMAN / NON-EXECUTIVE
STEFANO PREMOLI TROVATI
Born December 1, 1971
Italian national, Zug

First elected 2008,

elected until 2023

- Graduated in economics and
corporate law, Cattolica
University, Milan, Italy

- Postgraduate degree in tax law

- Managing Director of Barguzin
Participation SA, Luxembourg,
from 2009 until 2015

- Managing Director of Barguzin
Participation AG, Zug, since 2022

- Member of the Board of Banca del
Ceresio SA, Lugano, since 2023

- Held various other board
memberships and positions as

statutory auditor

CARLO GAVAZZI GROUP

DIRECTOR / NON-EXECUTIVE
FEDERICO FOGLIA
Born April 28, 1969
Swiss national, London
First elected 2004,
elected until 2023

- Graduated in economics and political
sciences, Bocconi University, Milan, Italy

- Held positions with Merrill Lynch, London,
England, from 1996 until 2000

- Managing Director of Banca del Ceresio,
Lugano, Switzerland, from 2000 until 2014

- Executive Director, since 2014, and member
of the Board of Belgrave Capital Management,
London, England, since 2003

- Member of the Board of Ceresio SIM,
Milan, Italy, since 2006

- Member of the Boards of Centro Stampa
Ticino SA, Muzzano, Switzerland, since 2010,
Societa Editrice Corriere del Ticino SA,
Muzzano, Switzerland, since 2011, and
Corriere del Ticino Holding SA,
Muzzano, Switzerland, since 2012

- Member of the Board of Global Selection SGR,
Milan, Italy, since 2014

- Member of the Board of Simén I. Patifio

Foundation, Geneva, Switzerland, since 2019
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DIRECTOR / NON-EXECUTIVE
YOLANTA DE CACQUERAY

Born July 18, 1966

Polish and French national, Zug
First elected 2022,

elected until 2023

- Graduated as Master of Sciences and
Engineering at Polytechnical School,
Wroclaw, Poland, and as MBA
at HEC Paris, France

- Developed her professional career
during 15 years in Nestlé

- Deputy Zone Director for Europe,
Nestlé Waters from 2000 until 2002

- Director International Finance at
France Telecom from 2002 until 2005

- Deputy CFO and CFO at Firmenich,
Losinger Marazzi, Beldona and other
companies from 2005 until 2016

- CFO of Landis & Gyr Switzerland AG
from 2016 until 2022

- Director Accounting, Reporting and
Treasury at Smartenergy Group
since 2022

- Bearer shareholders‘ representative
of Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG
since July 2022

DIRECTOR / NON-EXECUTIVE
VITTORIO ROSSI
Born May 8, 1958
Italian national, Borgo Ticino, Italy
First elected 2022,
elected until 2023

- Graduated in electrical engineering,
Politecnico of Milan, Italy

- Held various management positions
with the Siemens Group in Germany,
Italy and USA from 1985 until 2002

- CEO of Siemens SpA, Milan, Italy,
from 2002 until 2005

- CEO of Gewiss SpA, Bergamo, Italy,
from 2005 until 2007

- CEO of Carlo Gavazzi Automation
Components from June 2009
until July 2022

CARLO GAVAZZI GROUP
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SECRETARY TO THE BOARD
RAOUL BUSSMANN
Swiss national, Zug

- University of Zurich, Doctorate in
jurisprudence

- Legal Counsel and member of the
Corporate Legal Staff of Sulzer
Brothers Limited, Winterthur,
Switzerland, from 1981 until 1986

- General Counsel and head of the
Corporate Legal Staff of Landis &
Gyr AG, Zug, Switzerland,
from 1986 until 1991

- Attorney at Law and Notary in Zug,

Switzerland, since 1991 and partner at

the law firm Stadlin Advokatur
Notariat in Zug, Switzerland,
from 1998 until 2016

- Partner at the law firm Kaiser
Odermatt & Partner, Zug,
Switzerland, since 2016

- Secretary to the Board of
Directors of Carlo Gavazzi
Holding AG since July 2009

22
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FORMER MEMBER

VALERIA GAVAZZI

Born August 2, 1974

Swiss and ltalian national, Zug
First elected 2009,

elected until 2022

- Graduated in economics and
business administration,
IGS, Paris, France

- Managing Director of Barguzin
Consultancy GmbH from
2004 until 2009

- Chairman of Carlo Gavazzi
Holding AG from July 2009
until July 2022

- Managing Director of Barguzin
Participation SA, Zug,
from 2015 until 2022

Valeria Gavazzi is no longer a
member of the Board of Directors
as per July 26, 2022.
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Executive Management and independence of the
Board of Directors

None of the members of the Board of Directors
have served in the Executive Management of

the Company or of any of its direct or indirect
subsidiaries in the three financial years preceding
the period under review, except for Vittorio Rossi
who was CEO of Automation Components until
July 26, 2022. Valeria Gavazzi (until July 26, 2022)
and Stefano Premoli Trovati have served on the
Boards of Directors of direct or indirect subsidiaries
of the Company. Valeria Gavazzi is a significant
shareholder of the Company.

For additional information on members of the

Board of Directors and “Related Party Transactions”
refer to note 25 “Related party transactions” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Carlo Gavazzi
Holding AG, note 4 “Significant shareholders and
their shareholdings” to the Financial Statements

of Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG, section 1 of this

report concerning the disclosure of significant
shareholdings as well as to section 2 "Remuneration
expense” to the compensation report.

Restrictions on positions outside the Carlo Gavazzi
Group

According to article 28 of the Articles of Association
(the Articles of Association are available in German
at www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/files/693
0b8b2b86cH2483ef5f9cab828ed9d), a member

of the Board of Directors may hold up to twenty
additional mandates as a member of the highest-
level governing or administrative body of companies
outside the Carlo Gavazzi Group, five thereof

in listed companies. Mandates with associated
companies outside the Carlo Gavazzi Group are
deemed to be a single mandate, as long as not more
than ten mandates are being held within such a
group of associated companies.

Election, terms of office and internal organization

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises
at least three members. They are elected by the
AGM on an individual basis for a term of one year.
Re-election is permitted. There is no limit to the
terms of office. The statutory age limit is

70 years. The Chairman is elected annually by the
AGM. Re-election is permitted. The Articles of
Association including the relevant article 16 are
available in German on the Group’s website at
www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/files/6930b8b2b8
6c52483ef5f9cab828ed9d.

Areas of responsibility — Board of Directors

The Board of Directors establishes the strategic,
accounting, organizational and financing policies
to be followed by the Group. It supervises, controls
and advises the Group’s management. The Board of
Directors has put in place reporting and controlling
processes to ensure it has sufficient information

to make appropriate decisions. The Board of
Directors regularly reviews the operational and
financial results and approves budgets as well as
consolidated financial statements. The Board of
Directors appoints the Group's executive officers.
Within the limits of the law and with the exception
of those competencies that are reserved to the
Board of Directors or delegated otherwise, the
Board of Directors delegates to the CEO the overall
management of the industrial and commercial
activities of the Group and the conduct of the day-to-
day business of the various companies belonging
to the Group. On a regular basis, the CFO reports
the financial results and forecasts to the Board

of Directors, whereas the CEO regularly reports

to the Board of Directors regarding industrial

and commercial business activity. The Board of
Directors has established an Audit Committee (the
"AC") and the Compensation Committee (the "CC”
- whose members are elected by the AGM] to carry
out certain duties as set out below. Further, as a
means to exercise supervision over Automation
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Components, the Board of Directors has established
the Strategic Management Board (the "SMB").

The SMB regularly reports to the Board of
Directors with respect to its supervision activities of
Automation Components and submits for approval
to the Board of Directors the strategies of the
Group. Other members of management report to
the Board of Directors as necessary. The Board of
Directors has a quorum when the majority of its
members are present. Its decisions are taken by a
simple majority of the attending members. In case
of a tied vote, the Chairman has the casting vote.

The Board of Directors holds a minimum of four
meetings per year including a strategy review
meeting and a budget meeting in November and
March, respectively. The meetings of the Board

of Directors usually last for a whole day. The CEO
attends these meetings as required. The CFO
regularly assists the Chairman in the presentation
and discussion of the financial results. In the
reporting period, the Board of Directors held four
full-day meetings including one strategy review
meeting and one budget meeting and held four
conference calls. The CFO attended all of the four
full-day meetings in an advisory capacity. The
attendance of the Group CEO at the meetings in an
advisory capacity was related to business operations
and on average lasted for approximately half a day.
No members of the Executive Management took
part in the conference calls. No external consultants
attended the meetings and the conference calls.

Audit Committee (AC)

The prime function of the Audit Committee is

to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its
supervisory responsibilities. It evaluates the
independence and effectiveness of external
auditors, approves auditing services to be
performed by the external auditors and their related
fees, evaluates business risks, assesses the quality
of financial accounting and reporting, evaluates
scope and overall audit plans, reviews audit results
and monitors compliance with specific laws and

regulations governing the financial statements.
The Audit Committee may ask any questions at

all times when deemed necessary and may have
direct contact with the Group’s auditors and other
professional organizations. The Audit Committee

is acting in an advisory capacity and its proposals
are subject to the approval of the entire Board of
Directors. During the financial year 2022/23, the
Audit Committee consisted of Yolanta de Cacqueray
(Chairman), Stefano Premoli Trovati and Vittorio
Rossi. The Audit Committee meets as often as
business requires. In the reporting period, the
Audit Committee held two meetings, each with the
participation of the Group’s auditors. The CFO in an
advisory capacity attended both meetings in full.
No external consultants or other members of the
Executive Management attended the meetings. On
average, the meetings lasted for approximately half
a day.

Compensation Committee (CC)

The Compensation Committee comprises of at
least two members, each elected by the AGM for

a one-year term. Re-election is permitted. The
prime function of the Compensation Committee is
to assist the Board of Directors in preparing and
proposing to the Board of Directors compensation
guidelines in line with the overall strategy. It
prepares and proposes to the Board of Directors
the compensation levels for the Board of Directors
and its Committees. In addition, it prepares and
proposes to the Board of Directors the terms of
employment of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman
of the Board of Directors and of the Executive
Management. It also prepares and proposes to

the Board of Directors a compensation policy for
the Group (including Automation Components)
that fairly rewards performance and effectively
attracts and retains the human resources necessary
to successfully lead and manage the unit. The
Compensation Committee prepares, monitors and
proposes to the Board of Directors compensation
plans including any modifications to such plans for
executives reporting to the Board of Directors or to
the Chairman of the Board of Directors, including
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Automation Components’ first-line managers.
Upon request of the Board of Directors, it prepares
and proposes to the Board of Directors long-term
incentive plans.

In the financial year 2022/23, the Compensation
Committee consisted of Stefano Premoli Trovati
(Chairman), Yolanta de Cacqueray and Federico
Foglia. The Compensation Committee meets as
often as business requires. In the reporting period,
the Compensation Committee met three times. No
external consultants or members of the Executive
Management attended the meetings. On average,
the meetings lasted for approximately two hours.

According to article 8(4) of the Articles of
Association (the Articles of Association are available
in German at www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/
files/6930b8b2b86c52483ef5f9cab828ed9d), the
compensation of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Management has to be approved by the
AGM.

Strategic Management Board (SMB)

The SMB develops and submits for approval to

the Board of Directors the strategies of the Group.
Further, the SMB supervises the business. In these
functions, the SMB, inter alia, reviews the accounts
of Automation Components and the consolidated
accounts of the Group, manages budget deviations
and takes the necessary corrective actions.

The SMB develops and discusses strategic
opportunities, coordination requirements and
common services. The SMB further develops and
discusses policies, procedures and regulations and
drives special projects. It develops and discusses
sales and procurement synergies and develops
marketing, finance, personnel and IT policies.

In the financial year 2022/23, the SMB consisted of
Daniel Hirschi (Chairman), Stefano Premoli Trovati,
Vittorio Rossi (CEO Automation Components

until July 25, 2022), Jean-Marc Théolier (CEQ from
July 26, 2022), Anthony M. Goldstein [CFO until
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October 31, 2022) and Tobias Bissig [CFO from
November 1, 2022). The SMB meets as often as
business requires. In the reporting period, the

SMB met eight times. On average, the meetings
lasted between two hours to a full day. The CFO of
Automation Components attended all the meetings.
No external consultants attended the meetings of
the SMB during the reporting period.

Members of the Committees of the Board of
Directors and members of the Board of Directors
being members of the SMB

Audit Compensation SMB
Name Committee Committee
Daniel Hirschi *
Stefano Premoli Trovati v * v
Yolanta de Cacqueray * v
Federico Foglia v
Vittorio Rossi v v

¥ Chairman V¥ Member

Reporting to the Board of Directors

Frequency Content
Monthly Key P&L information on
- Automation Components sub-consolidated
- Group consolidated with previous year and
budget comparisons
Quarterly P&L, balance sheets, investments and

personnel
- Automation Components sub-consolidated
- Group consolidated with previous year,

budget comparisons and year-end estimate

Semi-annually  Interim reports meeting the requirements

of the SIX Swiss Exchange

Annually All information necessary to establish the
annual report governed by IFRS and
the rules applicable to companies quoted

on the SIX Swiss Exchange
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The Board of Directors is reqgularly informed about
the Group's performance according to the latest
Management Information System (MIS) reporting
for which the CFO is responsible. Furthermore, the
annual budget and the strategic plan are subject

to approval by the Board of Directors. Ad hoc
information is reported to the Board of Directors
when deemed necessary. Each year, the Company
conducts a risk assessment process. This process is
based on bottom-up assessment by the responsible
first-line managers of the Group. Risks are rated by
impact and probability of occurrence and mitigating
measures and operational responsibilities are
defined. The risk assessment process is evaluated
in a specific committee and identified risks and
mitigating actions are reported to the Board of
Directors of the Company.

4. Executive Management

According to article 29 of the Articles of Association
(the Articles of Association are available in German
at www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/files/6930b
8b2b86c52483ef5f9cab828ed9d), the employment
agreements with the members of the Executive
Management must either have a fixed term of not
more than one year, or an unlimited term with a
notice period of not more than twelve months.

Areas of responsibility — Chief Executive Officer of
the Group (CEO)

The CEQ of the Group leads the Group’s Business
as a whole. In his function the CEO reports to the
Chairman of the Board of Directors. Operationally
responsible for the Group as a whole, he ensures
the integration and coordination of the subsidiaries’
activities towards the overall achievement of the
Group’s goals. Within the limits of the law and

with the exception of those competencies that are
reserved to the Board of Directors or delegated
otherwise, the Board of Directors delegates to the

CEO of the Group the overall management of the
Group’s industrial and commercial activities and the
conduct of the day-to-day business of the various
companies belonging to it. His main responsibilities
are: management of the business, preparation of
meetings and proposals for the SMB, execution of
decisions of the Board of Directors and the SMB,
regular reporting to the Board of Directors and the
SMB on business activities and important events,
support to the Chairman on matters of M&A as well
as organizational developments.

The CEO of the Group can delegate part of his
functions to other persons. In particular, it is his
task to define responsibilities and competencies
for Group management and employees. However,
such delegation of duties does not release the CEO
from the responsibility of the overall management
and results of the Group and the Automation
Components business.

Areas of responsibility - Chief Financial Officer of
the Group (CFO)

The CFO is responsible for organizing and
supervising all financial aspects of the Group. He
implements all decisions of the Board of Directors
and of the Audit Committee and is responsible for
the flow of information to the Board of Directors
regarding all financial matters.

In particular, the CFQO’s responsibilities include:
ensuring a timely and adequate reporting system
to the Board of Directors, the SMB and the CEO,
including budgets and mid-term projections,
organizing and implementing the financial planning,
tax planning, organizing and supervising the Group
banking relations, assisting the Chairman and the
CEQ as required in investor relations, representing
the Group towards financial institutions, providing
for a timely completion of the finance part of

the interim and the annual report, both on a
consolidated basis for the Group and on a stand-
alone basis for the Company.
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The executive management responsibility lies with the CEO and the CFO of the Group. They have the

executive management responsibility in their respective roles.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

(FROM JULY 26, 2022)

JEAN-MARC THEOLIER

Born July 15, 1962

French and United States national

- Master in Business Administration at
University Pierre Mendes France,
Grenoble, France, and BS in Mechanical
Engineering at INSA, Lyon, France

- Design Engineer and Business
Development Manager at Merlin-
Gerin, France, from 1982 until 1990

- Global Marketing Director and later
Americas National Sales Manager at
Crouzet in France and US, from 1990
until 2006

- VP Sales then General Manager of
Crydom Inc., San Diego, CA, and
Dallas, TX, USA, from 2006 until 2015

- Business Unit Director at Sensata
Technologies and General Manager of
BEI Kimco, San Diego, CA, USA,
from 2015 until 2017

- CEO at Pelco Inc., Fresno, CA, USA,
from 2017 until 2019

- Global Head of Sales and Marketing,
Region Head Americas, Carlo Gavazzi
Group from 2019 until 2022

- CEO Carlo Gavazzi Group since July 2022

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
(FROM NOVEMBER 1, 2022)
TOBIAS BISSIG

Born May 20, 1980
Swiss national

- Master in Business Administration
at University of St. Gallen (HSG),
Switzerland

- Various controller functions at ABB
in Switzerland, the USA, Taiwan
and the Middle East, from 2005
until 2011

- Global Business Controller &
Finance Manager at Education First
Corporate Language Solutions,
Lucerne, Switzerland, from 2011
until 2013

- Various finance leadership positions
at Schindler, from 2014 until 2019

- Chief Financial Officer of Schindler
UK & Ireland, from 2019 until 2022

- Chief Financial Officer of
Carlo Gavazzi Group, since
November 2022

CARLO GAVAZZ| GROUP
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EXTERNAL CORPORATE
COMMUNICATIONS
ROLF SCHLAPFER
Swiss national

- Senior Partner of Hirzel.Neef.Schmid.
Konsulenten AG, Zurich

- External corporate communications
of the Carlo Gavazzi Group

since January 1, 2011
Rolf Schlipfer is not a member of the

Executive Management and is not an

employee of the Group.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)
UNTIL OCTOBER 31, 2022
ANTHONY M. GOLDSTEIN
Born March 11, 1949
Swiss and British national

- Chartered Accountant FCA

- Audit and training manager at
Deloitte, Zurich, from 1975
until 1982

- Joined Group in 1982

- Head of Group Reporting

- Group Controller

- Secretary to the Board from 1983
until 2009

- Chief Financial Officer from 2007
to February 2020 and since
August 2020 until October 2022

- Member of the Board of Swisscanto
Collective Foundation of the
Cantonal Banks from 2014 until 2021

- Member of the Zurich Rental
Conciliation Authority since 2014

- Elected as a member of the Zurich
City Parliament in February 2022

Anthony M. Goldstein is no longer a

member of the Executive Board as per
October 31, 2022.
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CEO OF AUTOMATION COMPONENTS
UNTIL JULY 26, 2022

VITTORIO ROSSI

Born May 8, 1958

Italian national

- Graduated in electrical engineering,
Politecnico of Milan, Italy

- Held various management positions
with the Siemens Group in
Germany, Italy and USA from 1985
until 2002

- CEO of Siemens SpA, Milan, Italy,
from 2002 until 2005

- CEO of Gewiss SpA, Bergamo, Italy,
from 2005 until 2007

- CEO of Carlo Gavazzi Automation
Components from June 2009 until
July 2022

Vittorio Rossi is no longer a
member of the Executive Board as per
July 26, 2022.
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External Corporate Communications

The function of Corporate Communications is
executed by Rolf Schlapfer of Hirzel.Neef.Schmid.
Konsulenten AG, Zurich.

In his function he reports to the Chairman. He

is responsible for the elaboration of the Group’s
communications strategy, for its final definition in
close coordination with the Chairman of the Board
of Directors and for its implementation.

In particular, this includes: continuous review of
the Group’s communications activities with the
purpose of enhancing or redefining the Group’s
positioning towards all stakeholders, preparation of
the Group’s media releases, participation in media
conferences, shareholders” meetings and investor
meetings, coordination of all main events such

as media conferences and AGMs, organization of
any other events such as interviews and meetings
with the media and the financial community,
assistance to the Chairman and other members
of the management in the preparation of public
statements.

The Group has a consultancy agreement with Hirzel.

Neef.Schmid.Konsulenten AG. The agreement
provides for a monthly flat fee of CHF 9 000 as
compensation for the services rendered and may be
terminated at any time with a notice period of one
month.

Restrictions on positions outside the
Carlo Gavazzi Group

According to article 28 of the Articles of Association
(the Articles of Association are available in German
at www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/files/6930
b8b2b86c52483ef5f9cab828ed9d), a member of

the Executive Management may hold up to three
additional mandates as a member of the highest-
level governing or administrative body of non-listed
companies outside the Carlo Gavazzi Group.

No additional mandates may be held in listed

companies. Mandates with associated companies
outside the Carlo Gavazzi Group are deemed to be
a single mandate, as long as not more than ten
mandates are being held within such a group of
associated companies.

Members of the Executive Management require
the prior approval of the Board of Directors, or,
if delegated, of the Compensation Committee, to
accept positions/employment outside the Carlo
Gavazzi Group.

5. Compensation

For details relating to the compensation of present
and former members of the Board of Directors and
of the Executive Management, please refer to the
2022/23 compensation report included in the annual
report 2022/23 (available at www.carlogavazzi.com/
en/investors/annual-report.html).

Statutory rules regarding the principles of
compensation, loans, credits and pension benefits
are set out in articles 25 and 30 of the Articles of
Association (the Articles of Association are available
in German at www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/
files/6930b8b2b86c52483ef5f9cab828ed?d). The
rules regarding approval of the compensation of the
Board of Directors and the Executive Management
by the AGM are set out in articles 26, 27 and

29 of the Articles of Association. The Articles

of Association are available in German at www.
carlogavazzi.com/files/media/files/6930b8b2b86c52
483efof9cab828ed9d.

6. Shareholders’ participation rights

There are no restrictions on the use of voting rights
by any group of shareholders. Statutory rules for
participating at meetings of shareholders do not
differ from the applicable legal provisions. The AGM
passes its resolutions by absolute majority of the
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votes cast, to the extent the law or the Articles of
Association do not provide otherwise. The Articles of
Association do not provide for any resolutions that
would require a majority greater than that required
by law. Convocation of the meetings of shareholders
and rules for adding items to the agenda of the
meetings of shareholders, especially rules on
deadlines, are in accordance with the applicable
legal provisions.

Under the current Articles of Association (the
Articles of Association are available in German

at www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/files/6930
b8b2b86c52483ef5f9cab828ed?d) shareholders
representing shares of a par value of CHF 1 000 000
may request items to be included in the agenda.
This provision does not yet conform to the respective
new mandatory provision under the revised Swiss
corporate law that came into force on January 1,
2023 pursuant to which shareholders representing
0.5% of the share capital or votes may request
items to be included in the agenda. However, under
the transitional provisions of the revised Swiss
corporate law an implementation period of two
years (until December 31, 2024) applies during
which this provision in the Articles of Association
remain applicable. The putting on the agenda has
to be requested in written form listing the items
and the motions. While there is no set deadline,

for administrative reasons such request must

be submitted to the Company timely prior to the
distribution of the AGM invitation.

All shareholders entered into the share register
will be admitted to the meetings of shareholders
and are entitled to vote. For administrative reasons,
no new entries will be made during the ten days
preceding a meeting of shareholders. Shareholders
who dispose of their shares before a meeting of
shareholders are not entitled to vote.

Each shareholder with voting rights may have their
shares represented by a proxy that he/she/it has
appointed or by the independent proxy. The AGM
annually elects the independent proxy, whose term

of office ends at the conclusion of the next AGM.
Re-election is permitted. If the Company does not
have an independent proxy, the Board of Directors
appoints an independent proxy for the next AGM.

The Company enables its shareholders to
transfer their votes to the independent proxy by
electronic means through the platform Sherpany
(www.sherpany.com] for any general meeting.
The relevant description of the procedure to
register and vote through the platform is sent

to shareholders who are registered in the share
register upon their request.

7. Changes of control and defense measures

There are no statutory rules in existence relating
to opting out or opting up in connection with the
duty to make an offer. Furthermore, there are no
agreements in existence relating to changes of
control.

8. Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG, Zug, have been the
group auditors and statutory auditors since 1979.
The auditors are elected by the AGM for a period of
one year. The lead auditor, Thomas Illi, assumed his
mandate in July 2017. In accordance with Swiss law,
the lead auditor will rotate every seven years. The
next change will be in 2024/25.

The audit fees charged by PricewaterhouseCoopers
in 2022/23 amounted to CHF 524 000. For additional
services the Group paid PricewaterhouseCoopers
the sum of CHF 252 000, representing CHF 19 000
for tax consulting services and CHF 233 000 for
other additional services relating mainly to non-
audit related coaching and supporting (tax, privacy
matters, internal control, ESG) group subsidiaries.
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Fees charged in 2022/23 by other audit companies
for auditing certain subsidiaries amounted to
CHF 138 000.

The Audit Committee reviews annually the scope

of the audit, the audit focus areas, the audit plan,
as well as the results of the audit including key
audit matters and overall assessment. Further,

the Audit Committee reviews any questions,
comments, or suggestions of the auditors regarding
internal control, significant risks and accounting
practices and procedures. In addition to the audit
reports on the consolidated financial statements
and the statutory financial statements of Carlo
Gavazzi Holding AG, the auditors prepare annually
a detailed report to the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors. The Audit Committee discusses
the report and the results of the audit in detail

with the auditors. The auditors are also present at
meetings of the Audit Committee as required. For
the reporting period, the Audit Committee held two
meetings with PricewaterhouseCoopers AG.

The Audit Committee regularly evaluates the
independence, fees and the effectiveness of the
external auditors. The reports and presentations
composed by the auditors, the discussions in the
meetings, the factual and objective perspectives
and the expertise form the basis for the assessment
of the Board of Directors regarding the auditors’
performance and the fees paid for the audit services
provided. The Audit Committee verifies that any
additional services of the auditors not relating to the
audit services are provided within the independence
requirements pursuant to Swiss law. The auditors
are required to confirm that their performance of
these additional services had no influence on the
conduct or outcome of the audits mandated by law.

9. Information policy

The Carlo Gavazzi Group has an open information
policy and sets as its goal to treat all target groups
equally. When the annual results are released, the
Group organizes a conference for the media and
the investor community to discuss details related
to its performance and its business. In addition to
the annual report and the interim report, the Group
provides the media with information on relevant
changes and developments.

Such data can also be obtained from the Group’s
website at www.carlogavazzi.com/media. The
Company’s official means of communication is the
Swiss Official Gazette of Commerce.

As a company listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange and
in line with article 53 et seq. of the Listing Rules
dated October 21, 2021 (ad hoc publicity), the Group
publishes all information relevant to its share price.
In compliance with the Directive on Ad hoc Publicity
dated March 10, 2021, the Group offers a service

on its website that allows interested parties to
receive via e-mail distribution timely notification of
potentially price-sensitive facts (www.carlogavazzi.
com/registration]. In addition, any ad hoc notice
will be made available on the Group's website
simultaneously. All media releases can be viewed
under www.carlogavazzi.com/media.

The financial calendar for the financial year 2023/24
is available inside the back cover of this annual
report and can also be viewed on the Group’s
website under www.carlogavazzi.com/en/investors/
financial-calendar.html.

Contact for investor relations:
Rolf Schlapfer, rolf.schlaepfer(@konsulenten.ch,
+41 43 344 42 42

Hirzel.Neef.Schmid.Konsulenten AG
Kirchenweg 8

8008 Zurich

Switzerland
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Corporate Headquarters: 11. Material changes since the balance
Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG sheet date

Sumpfstrasse 3

6312 Steinhausen No material changes occurred since the
Switzerland balance sheet date.

www.carlogavazzi.com

10. Restricted periods

Subject to different ordinary restricted periods being
defined by the Chairman of the Board of Directors in
coordination with the CEO and the CFO, the ordinary
restricted periods start 30 calendar days prior to the
public release of the relevant annual and interim
results of the Group and end at the close of trading
on the first trading day following the release of

such results. For the financial year 2022/2023, the
ordinary restricted periods were from October 25,
2022, until (and including) November 24, 2022 and
from May 23, 2023 until (and including) June 22,
2023.

Addressees of the ordinary restricted periods are,
on the one hand, the members of the Board of
Directors, the Secretary to the Board of Directors as
well as the CEQ, the CFO and any other members
of the Executive Management (if any). On the other
hand, the ordinary restricted periods also apply to
the members of the controlling and the internal
revision (if any), all persons subordinated to the
CFO and to the CFO of Automation Components,
to first line management and to employees of the
headquarters.

Ad hoc restricted periods may be introduced by the
CEQO, in coordination with the Chairman of the Board
of Directors and the CFO, where the CEO considers
it necessary or appropriate, including where insider
information exists.
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Compensation Report

Carlo Gavazzi Group

1. Remuneration philosophy and
basic principles

General

The Compensation Report provides information on
the remuneration system and the compensation
paid to the members of the Board of Directors and
of the Executive Management of Carlo Gavazzi for
the financial years 2022/23 and 2021/22.

The Company issues its Compensation Report
separate from the Corporate Governance Report.
The Compensation Report is written in accordance
with the Swiss Federal Code of Obligations. Itis

also written in accordance with the Directive on
Information Relating to Corporate Governance of the
SIX Swiss Exchange (DCG) and the Swiss Code of
Best Practice for Corporate Governance of the Swiss
Business Federation (economiesuisse).

Remuneration objective

The compensation system at Carlo Gavazzi accords
with the Company’s corporate strategy and aligns
the interests of the leadership team and employees
with those of our shareholders. It is an important
factor in attracting, motivating and retaining

people with the talent essential to strengthen

the Company’s position in the global market of
designing, manufacturing and marketing electronic
equipment.

Governance

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility
for defining the compensation principles at

Carlo Gavazzi. On an annual basis, based on the
proposal of the Compensation Committee and
subject to its own review, the Board of Directors
ultimately decides in compliance with articles 25

and 27 of the Articles of Association (available at
www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/files/6930b8b
2b86c52483ef5f9cab828ed?d or via the QR code on
page 19), on the total compensation for the
members of the Board of Directors and of the
Executive Management, including the variable
compensation. These decisions are approved by
the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
in accordance with article 26 of the Articles of
Association (available at www.carlogavazzi.com/
files/media/files/6930b8b2b86c52483ef5{9cab828ed
9d or via the QR code on page 19).

Compensation Committee

The members of the Compensation Committee
are individually elected by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting.

The prime function of the Compensation Committee
is to assist the Board of Directors in setting the
compensation policies for the Board of Directors
and the Executive Management of the Company as
well as in determining the overall compensation
policies of Carlo Gavazzi. It also prepares and
proposes to the Board of Directors compensation
guidelines in line with the overall corporate strategy,
compensation levels, compensation structure and
aggregate compensation amounts for the Board

of Directors and the Executive Management. The
Compensation Committee may retain external
consultants to provide support in fulfilling its duties.

To determine appropriate compensation levels

for the members of the Board of Directors and of
the Executive Management, the Compensation
Committee considers publicly available information
on remuneration for internationally active Swiss
Small Caps peer companies classified in the
Industry Classification Benchmark (ICB) sector 2730
for Electronic and Electrical Equipment industrial
companies. The peer group was reviewed in 2022
and consists of: Sensirion, Schaffner, von Roll,
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Phoenix Mecano, Autoneum Holding, Feintool
International Holding and Kudelski SA. During

the financial year 2022/23, no external advisors
were consulted on the determination of the
compensation. Based on the proposal of the
Compensation Committee and subject to its own
review, the Board of Directors ultimately decides on
the compensation on an annual basis.

For details regarding the members and the
responsibilities of the Compensation Committee
please refer to the report on Corporate Governance
on pages 24 and 25 of the annual report.

Benefits, contractual terms on leaving the
Company

Members of the Board of Directors are individually
elected at the Annual General Meeting for terms of
one year and accordingly have no fixed employment
agreements.

Employment contracts with members of the
Executive Management do not contain unusually
long notice periods or contract durations of more
than 12 months. There are neither mandate
agreements nor contractual severance agreements.

Compensation - Board of Directors

For their service in the Board of Directors, the
members receive a fixed annual fee, including
expenses, for the duration of their one-year
term. For participation in other ad hoc meetings,
members of the Board of Directors are additionally
remunerated with a fixed fee. The compensation
may comprise cash payment, relevant social
security contributions and other expenses. The
compensation of the members of the Board

of Directors is not bound to specific targets of
the Group. There are no share option plans in
existence.

The members of the Board of Directors with respect
to whom the compensation is being determined

are excluded from attending the relevant part of

the meeting of the Board of Directors and have

no right to a say in decisions relating to their own
compensation.

For the year 2021/22, the Chairman of the Board
of Directors has renounced receipt of all Board
compensation.

Compensation - Executive Management

The compensation of the members of the Executive
Management consists of a fixed portion and a
variable cash component related to individual and
corporate performance. There are no share option
plans in existence. The compensation includes
salary, employer’s contribution to social security as
well as other expenses.

The fixed base salary considers the responsibility
assumed by the respective member of the Executive
Management, individual qualifications and market
levels of remuneration for the respective country
and position.

For the CEO of the Group in 2022/23 (from August
2022) and the CEQ of Automation Components
(ACBUJ in 2022/23 (until July 2022) and in 2021/22,
the variable portion of the compensation relates to
specific, individual, measurable targets set out by
the Board of Directors. In the financial years 2022/23
and 2021/22, the targets were based on revenue
from sale of goods and EBITDA, each weighted
45%, and Net Working Capital Turnover weighted
10%. The variable portion is evaluated based

on target attainment at the end of the financial
year. The variable compensation for the CEO of
the Group ranges between 0% and 40 % of the

pro rata base salary and may go up to 80 % of the
base salary in case of targets being exceeded. The
variable compensation for the CEO of Automation
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Components [ACBUJ ranges between 0% and 54 %
of the base salary.

In addition to the fixed base salary and the variable
compensation, for the financial years 2022/23 and
2021/22, the CEO of Automation Components was
granted a one-time special bonus in recognition of
his efforts and achievements in guiding the Group
very successfully through the challenges faced by
the Group in the last two Covid-19 years.

For the CFO, the variable portion of the
compensation relates to individual performance
and is determined by the Board of Directors at

2. Remuneration expense

Compensation to members of the Board of Directors

its qualitative discretion. In the financial year
2022/23 the variable compensation amounted
to approximately 40 % of his annual base salary
on a pro rata basis (in 2021/22, the variable
compensation of the previous CFO amounted to
approximately 15 %).

The members of the Executive Management
with respect to whom the compensation is
being determined are excluded from attending
the relevant part of the meeting of the Board of
Directors and have no right to a say in decisions
relating to their own compensation.

2022/23 Daniel Hirschi ~ Stefano Premoli Trovati ~ Federico Foglia ~ Yolanta de Cacqueray  Vittorio Rossi

(in CHF 1 000) Chairman Vice-Chairman Member Member Member Total
Board fee, gross 450 250 100 100 200 1100
Employer‘s contribution to

social security 38 20 8 8 16 90
Other compensation 22 - - - - 22
Total 510 270 108 108 216 1212
2021/22 Valeria Gavazzi Stefano Premoli Trovati Federico Foglia Daniel Hirschi

(in CHF 1 000) Chairman* Vice-Chairman Member Member Total
Board fee, gross - 154 67 173 394
Employer"s contribution to social security - 13 5 16 34
Other compensation - 4 - 21 25
Total - 171 72 210 453

(*) For the year 2021/22, the Chairman of the Board of Directors renounced receipt of all Board

compensation.

The change in the compensation of the Board of Directors between the financial years 2022/23 and 2021/22
results from the institution of a new fixed annual remuneration system in line with internationally active

Swiss Small Caps peer companies.

During the year, the Group received advisory services from the consulting company of Stefano Premoli
Trovati for a total of CHF 35 (2021/22: CHF 75). In 2022/23, Stefano Premoli Trovati did not receive any board

fees from subsidiary companies (2021/22: CHF 24).

During the year, Vittorio Rossi received board fees from subsidiary companies of CHF 88 including

employer’s contributions to social security of CHF 12.
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Compensation to members of Executive Management

2022/23 Vittorio Rossi Anthony M. Goldstein Jean-Marc Théolier Tobias Bissig Total Group
(in CHF 1 000) Former CEO ACBU Former CFO CEO CFO  Management
Base salaries (fixed), gross 243 111 429 112 895
Bonus (variable), gross 254 - 246 43 543
Bonus, gross (one-off special award) 239 - - - 239
Employer*s contribution to social security 230 9 109 20 368
Other compensation 1 7 1 9 28
Total 967 127 795 184 2073
2021/22 Vittorio Rossi Anthony M Goldstein Total
(in CHF 1 000) CEO ACBU CFO Group Management
Base salaries (fixed), gross 433 190 623
Bonus (variable), gross 234 30 264
Bonus, gross (one-off special award) 256 - 256
Employer's contribution to social security 301 18 319
Other compensation 4 12 16
Total 1228 250 1478

The compensation of the Executive Management
includes the compensation for the former CFO
Anthony M. Goldstein as Member of the Executive
Management until October 31, 2022 (seven months)
as well as the compensation for the new CFO Tobias
Bissig appointed commencing November 1, 2022
(five months).

The change in the compensation of the Executive
Management between financial years 2022/23

and 2021/22, results from (i) overall higher bonus
payments (paid to the CEO and CFOJ due to
increased achievements of the performance targets
used to determine the variable compensation and [ii)
the composition of the Executive Management, with
the appointment of Tobias Bissig (replacing Anthony
M. Goldstein as of November 1, 2022) as the new
CFO.

The compensation of Vittorio Rossi, CEO ACBU until
July 26, 2022, is denominated in EUR and converted
using the average EUR/CHF exchange rate of the
year.
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Loans and credits to the members of the Board of
Directors or Executive Management

Statutory rules regarding the principles of
compensation, loans, credits and pension benefits
are set out in Art. 30 of the Articles of Association
(available at www.carlogavazzi.com/files/media/files
/6930b8b2b86c52483ef5f9cab828ed9d or via the QR
code on page 19).

There were no company loans nor credits
outstanding to current or former members of the
Board of Directors, Executive Management or
any related party as of March 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Compensation to former members of the Board of
Directors or Executive Management
No compensation was paid to former members of

the Board of Directors during the financial years
2022/23 and 2021/22, respectively.
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Anthony M. Goldstein, as former member of the
Executive Management continued to receive a total
compensation amounting to CHF 92 (including base
salary, employer’s contribution to social security

as well as other expenses) for work performed
during the first transition months of November
2022 until March 2023 (amount not included in

the compensation to members of the Executive
Management).

No compensation was paid to former members
of Executive Management during the financial
year 2021/22.

Compensation to related parties

Compensation to any related parties during the
financial years 2022/23 and 2021/22, respectively,
was market compliant.

Details on related party transactions can be viewed
in note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company.
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Report of the Statutory Auditor

Report of the statutory auditor

to the General Meeting of Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG

Steinhausen

Report on the audit of the remuneration report

Dpinion

W haye audbed th remunerabon neport of Carno Ganvazzi Holdng A0 [t Company) for tha vear ended 31 March
2023, Tha awdi was bmsed 1o the information on remuneration, lans and advances punuant kAR, 14 15 16 of the Or-
dinance against Excessive Remuneriion in Listed Companies Limited by Shares (Ordinance) contained in note 2 on
pages 35 1o 40 of the nemunarabion mpoan.

In our opinion, the information on remunemSon, kans and advances in the remunermton repodt (pages 38 to 40) com-
s with Swiss loey ared aetiche 14 10 18 of the Dederdnca.

Basis for opinion

Wi Concucied our BLdE n accoedanon with Swiks ki and Swiss Standasds on Audinng (SACH] Our espondibdieg
under thoss provisions and siandards are further described in the “Audilor's responsibiliSes for the awdit of ®e remuners-
tion repoiT secticn of our report. We are independent of the Company in sccordance with the provisions of Swiss law
and the requiremants. of the Seiss audil profassion, and we have Rusiled our other athical responsiblities in scoordance

with thess requirements,

Wi Dl Rl Sy Sudit evicancm v Rivd obtaanesd B SUBCen] And Aperapiaie Do provide & Dadis. [of cur opinion,

Crther informaticn

Thar Board of Direciors & nesponsitde kor the olher informatcn, The other infmalion compises the infamuation mchaded
in the arnual report, bull does not ndiude the tables marked ‘audibed” in the remuneration repor, e financial statements

B QU BUDIICE'S MDONS Thihhoan.

Cur opirscn on the nemunaeralion repor doss nol cover the other information and we do not expeess. any form of aseur-
ancs conclusion thareaon,

I s Saon With ol Sudit of thed remunBraton mpon, our eeponsibilty B o read the ol informabion and, 'l'lm
50, consider whether the other infarmation is malerially inconsistent with the audited financial information in e remuner-
Bbon report oF our knowiedge Sbtamad in the auda, or olharstes appears b be matenally ressiabed,

If, basad on the work we have performed, we conclude that thers B 3 materisd misstalement of this ather infarmation, we
mre regueed 1o repor thad fact We have nothang 1o report in thes. regand,

Board of Directors’ responsibllities for the remuneration report

The Board of Direclors & responsible tor the prepasaton of @ remuneration neport in ecoondance with the provisions: of
Swws law and e company's arlides of incorpontion, and Sor sudh inbsrmal conirol & the Board of Direciors determines
s necessary to enable the preparation of a remunemtion report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
Traud of ammed. The Bodrd of Decion is alio respondible for designing the remuneration sysiem and defining ndividual
remuneration packages,

Auditers responsibllites for the awdit of the remunerstion repoant

Our objscSnes are 1o obiain reasonable adsnncs about whether the information on remuneration, loans and advances.
pursuani bo aniche 14 10 16 of the Ordinance is fres from malenisl missialement, wheiher due o fraud of eror, and &

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG, Dammstrasse 21, Postiach, 6302 fug, Switzerland
Telefon: +41 58 702 68 oo, www.pwe.ch
TR gL A AL T o T gandal Prissee Wi T ae Sopah Tt o AT BT N @it o eperace el PekipairadnT gad ety
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issue an suditor's repor that imcluces our opinion, Reasonabils assurance is & high level of assuance, but s not & guas-
ankih thal an sudil conduchid ® acconrdandd with Switd livw and BA-CH will akediys dolacl & mabdnd| meselabemant whh
i axisss. Misataternents can arise from fraud or evror and are considersd material # individually o in the aggregate. they
could reasomably be expecied i influenos the econcmio decisions of users taken on the bass of this remunenaton ne-

[

Ag part of an audil in accordancs with Swiss L and M.HMMW and mainkain profes-
ricnal soapticEm throughout the sudil. We alea:

*® jdentify and assess the risks of maserial misstatemant in the remunemnton report, whothaer dus So frawd or eror, die-
sign and pesrform audit procedunes responsive to those risks, and cbilain audil evidence that is sufSicient and appropri-
ot b provide & Baal Tor our cpiresn, The fak of nod detectng o maberial misstaisment sesulting freen fravd = heaghar
thaan for ome resulting from emor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mismspresenia®ons, or
e overrice of inbernal controll

* Obtain an understanding of intemal control refevaint io the audit in coeder to design audit procedurss that ans appropr-
ah in tha cinoumstanoes, bud not for Bhe purpose of aopressing an opinion on the effectivensss of the Compay's in=
terrial e

* Evaluats the appeopdialerdss of Rotciinling polems ussd Ard th readonabierass of Acsounting esrmnales and re-
lated discloaures made.

W communicate with the Board of Dineclors or ils relevant commitbes regarding, among othar masiers, the planned
Sednn and imang of e pudil and signicand aucd Sedngs, including any signihcant SeBoemiss. in namal coningl thad
wn idbenlify dwring cur audit

‘Wi also prowids the Board of Dirsctors or its relsvant committes with a stafsmaent that we have complied with relevant
athical require mants regarding incependence, and commen icate wah them all relationships and oihar matisrs that may
feasnnably ba thaught b0 baar on our ndepandands, and st applicable, sctions laken 1o sliminate thraats o sate-

guairds applisd.

Prcewalerhouseloopers AG

X i
Thamas Il Cranial Wyss

Licensed audit expert Licarsed auds exparl
Audilon in chaipe

Zug, 21 June 2023

3 Carlo Gavazri Holding AG | Repor of the slatwory sudiler 1o the Genaral Mesling
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the years ended March 31

46

lin CHF 1 000) Notes 2023 2022
Continuing operations

Revenue from sale of goods 209 601 183 389
Cost of goods sold (100 117) (84 837)
Gross profit 109 484 98 552
Research & development expense (7 408) (7 833)
Selling, general and administrative expense (62 435) (59 879)
Other operating income (expense), net 7 (342) 208
Operating profit (EBIT) 39 299 31048
Financial income 8 105 34
Financial expense 8 (639) (625)
Profit before income tax 38765 30 457
Income tax expense 20 (10 536) (8 421)
Net profit for the year 28 229 22036
Other comprehensive income

Actuarial gains (losses) on employee benefit obligations 18 342 877
Tax impact on actuarial gains (losses) on employee benefit obligations (60) (130)
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 282 747
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations (4 293) (4 269)
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (4 293) (4 269)
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (4011) (3522)
Total comprehensive income for the year 24218 18514
Net profit attributable to owners of Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG 28 229 22 036
Comprehensive income attributable to owners of Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG 24218 18 514
Earnings per share from net profit of continuing operations

for the year attributable to owners of Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG

lin CHF per share)

Basic and diluted earnings per share of continuing operations:

- registered shares 9 7.95 6.20
- bearer shares 9 39.71 31.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheets

as of

March 31 March 31
(in CHF 1 000) Notes 2023 2022
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 49 231 66 775
Fixed deposits 2.8 15470 -
Trade receivables 11 35819 31203
Other receivables 12 14 387 9376
Inventories 13 43 307 33 954
Total current assets 158 214 141 308
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 8 743 8 585
Right-of-use assets 2.1 6028 6939
Intangible assets 15 8055 8 562
Other receivables 12 390 564
Deferred income tax assets 20 3917 3159
Total non-current assets 27133 27 809
Total assets 185 347 169117
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Trade payables 17 104 15728
Other payables 16 18 288 20522
Lease liabilities 211,17 2501 2410
Other provisions 19 1290 -
Current income tax liabilities 5589 3 458
Total current liabilities 44772 42118
Non-current liabilities
Other payables 16 543 745
Lease liabilities 211,17 3697 4678
Employee benefit obligations 18 3857 4783
Other provisions 19 392 409
Deferred income tax liabilities 20 202 189
Total non-current liabilities 8691 10 804
Total liabilities 53 463 52 922
Equity
Share capital 21 10 661 10 661
Capital reserves 600 600
Other reserves 22 (31 959) (27 948)
Retained earnings 152 582 132 882
Total equity attributable to owners of Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG 131 884 116 195
Total liabilities and equity 185 347 169 117

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG

Share Capital Other Retained Total
(in CHF 1 000) Notes capital reserves reserves earnings equity
Equity at April 1, 2021 10 661 600 (24 426) 119 374 106 209
Net profit for the year - - - 22 036 22 036
Actuarial gains (losses) on employee
benefit obligations, net of tax - - 747 - 747
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - - (4 269) - (4 269)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (3522) - (3522)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (3522) 22036 18514
Dividends 10 - - - (8528 (8 528)
Total transactions with owners - - - (8 528) (8 528)
Equity at March 31, 2022 10 661 600 (27 948) 132 882 116 195
Net profit for the year - - - 28 229 28 229
Actuarial gains (losses] on employee
benefit obligations, net of tax - - 282 - 282
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - - (4 293) - (4 293)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (4011) - (4011)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (4011) 28 229 24 218
Dividends 10 - - - (8 529) (8 529]
Total transactions with owners - - - (8 529) (8 529)
Equity at March 31, 2023 10 661 600 (31 959) 152 582 131 884

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

for the years ended March 31

[in CHF 1000) Notes 2023 2022

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit for the year 28 229 22 036
Income taxes 20 10 536 8 421
Depreciation and amortization 5584 5858
Loss [gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 (91) (62)
Changes in other non-cash items (168) (346)
Changes in working capital:

- Change in trade receivables and other receivables (11 647) (8 335)
- Change in inventories (10 837) (7 474)
- Change in trade payables and other payables 1763 7236
Interest received 48 18
Interest paid (218) (252)
Income taxes paid (9 167) (6 694)
Cash flow from operating activities 14 032 20 406

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment 14 (3 237) (2 403)
Purchases of intangible assets 15 (3] (185)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 109 213
Payments for fixed deposits 2.8 (15 473) -
Cash flow from investing activities (18 604) (2 375)

Cash flow from financing activities

Dividends paid 10 (8 529) (8 528)
Principal elements of lease payments 211,17 (2 478) (2 592)
Repayment of borrowings - -
Cash flow from financing activities (11 007) (11 120)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (15 579) 6911
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 66775 62 466
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (1 965) (2 602)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 49 231 66 775

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. General information

Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG with its subsidiaries
(together Carlo Gavazzi Group, hereinafter “the
Group”) is an internationally active electronics
company. Its core business Automation Components
consists of design and manufacture of electronic
control components for the global industrial
automation markets. Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG

is a publicly traded company listed on the Swiss
stock exchange (SIX Swiss Exchange) in Zurich. The
address of its registered office is Sumpfstrasse 3,
CH-6312 Steinhausen, Switzerland.

The financial year of the Group ends on March 31.
The Group reporting currency is Swiss Francs
(CHF). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of Swiss Francs (CHF 1 000]
and, accordingly, all amounts have been rounded
off to the nearest thousand Swiss Francs unless
otherwise stated.

These audited consolidated financial statements
were approved for publication by the Board

of Directors on June 21, 2023, and will be
recommended for approval at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on July 25, 2023.

2. Material accounting and valuation policies

The material accounting and valuation policies
employed in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are described below. These
policies have been applied consistently in all the
reporting periods presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Carlo
Gavazzi Group have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and interpretations issued by the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) applicable

to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial
statements comply with IFRS as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a historical cost basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, as
well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities and
contingent assets during the reporting period.
Whilst these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge of current circumstances and
possible future events, actual results may ultimately
differ from these estimates.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

2.2.1 New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The Group did not apply any new or amended
standards which had any material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

2.2.2 New and amended IFRS not yet applied
Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for March 31, 2023 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These standards are not expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.3 Principles of consolidation

Group companies

Group companies are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group has
control. Carlo Gavazzi Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
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the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. New group companies are fully
consolidated from the time at which control of the
company is transferred to Carlo Gavazzi Group. They
are deconsolidated at the point in time at which
control ceases.

Assets and liabilities as well as the income

and expenses of these companies are fully
(100%) consolidated. All material internal group
transactions, balances and unrealized profits and
losses resulting from internal group transactions
are eliminated.

Non-controlling interests

The share of net assets and net profit attributable to
non-controlling interests is indicated separately in
the consolidated balance sheets, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. For
the years presented, there were no non-controlling
interests.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Swiss Francs (CHF) as the presentation currency.
The group companies compile their financial
statements in their functional currency, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which they operate.

Foreign currency translation

All assets and liabilities in the balance sheets

of the group companies that are denominated in
respective functional currencies are translated
into Swiss Francs at the closing rate. Items in the
comprehensive income statements and cash flow
statements are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate
on the date of the transactions). The resulting
translation differences are recognized in other

comprehensive income. When a group company
is sold, the cumulative translation differences
recognized in shareholders’ equity are recycled to
the income statement.

The following exchange rates into Swiss Francs
were used during the periods:

Year-end rates - balance sheets

Currency Unit 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
BRL 100 18.06 19.48
CAD 1 0.68 0.74
CNY 100 13.32 14.56
DKK 100 13.32 13.76
EUR 1 0.99 1.02
GBP 1 1.13 1.21
HKD 100 11.66 11.79
MYR 100 20.74 21.95
NOK 100 8.74 10.55
SEK 100 8.82 9.89
SGD 1 0.69 0.68
uUSD 1 0.92 0.92
Average rates - comprehensive income statement

01.04.2022 01.04.2021
Currency Unit - 31.03.2023 - 31.03.2022
BRL 100 18.56 17.24
CAD 1 0.72 0.73
CNY 100 13.95 14.32
DKK 100 13.36 14.36
EUR 1 0.99 1.07
GBP 1 1.15 1.26
HKD 100 12.18 11.76
MYR 100 21.48 22.01
NOK 100 9.62 10.59
SEK 100 9.21 10.44
SGD 1 0.70 0.68
USD 1 0.96 0.92

Foreign currency transactions and balances in the
individual financial statements

Foreign currency transactions are translated

into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured.
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All exchange differences are recognized in the
income statement, except for intercompany
transactions having the nature of a permanent
financial investment which are directly recorded in
equity.

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents

The Group considers all highly liquid investments
with original maturity of three months or less to be
cash.

Cash and cash equivalents are reported at their
nominal value.

2.6 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment
losses recognized for expected lifetime credit
losses. The Group applies the simplified approach
for the measurement of the expected lifetime credit
losses which is based on known uncollectible
accounts, aged receivables, historical losses and
forward-looking parameters specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables are limited due to the large number
of geographically diverse customers which make
up the Group’s customer base, thus spreading
credit risk. Some European countries require
longer payment terms as a part of doing business
and this may subject the Group to a higher risk

of non-collectability. This risk is evaluated when
determining the bad debt allowance. The Group
generally does not require collateral from its
customers.

Changes to the bad debt allowance as well as
effective losses due to bad debts are shown in
selling, general and administrative expense.

2.7 Other receivables

This item includes all other receivables that do not
arise from deliveries of products (e.g., VAT credits,
withholding tax credits, receivables from social
insurances, etc.). Included are also advances to
suppliers as well as prepaid expenses (e.qg. for rent,
consulting, insurance premiums, etc.).

Other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
and fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). The
classification depends on the Group's business
model for managing the financial assets and

on their contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets are generally classified as current
assets unless they are not expected to be realized
within 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.8.1 Classification of financial assets

a) Financial assets at amortized cost

These assets are debt instruments held to collect
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
the principal amount and interest and are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method less impairment losses recognized for
expected credit losses (refer to note 2.8.3). Interest,
foreign currency revaluations and impairment
losses are recognized in the income statement.
Financial assets at amortized costs comprise cash
and cash equivalents and fixed deposits, trade
receivables and other receivables in the balance
sheet [notes 2.5, 2.6 and 2.7). Fixed deposits include
money market funds and government treasury
security investments in financial assets with an
initial maturity date of three months up to twelve
months.
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b] Financial assets at FVOCI

These assets are debt instruments held both

for selling and collecting contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of the principal amount
and interest and equity instruments not held for
trading. Financial assets at FVOCI are measured at
fair value. Interest, foreign currency revaluations
and impairment losses (refer to note 2.8.3) are
recognized in the income statement. Any other
changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

c) Financial assets at FVPL

These assets are equity instruments held for
trading or financial assets designated by the
Group as financial assets at FVPL. Derivatives

are also categorized in this category unless they
are designated as hedges. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value are presented in the
income statement within other operating income
(expense), net in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at FVPL is
recognized in the income statement as part of other
operating income (expense), net when the Group's
right to receive payment is established.

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement of financial
assets

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets

are recognized on the trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognized at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at FVPL. Financial assets at FVPL are initially
recognized at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets
are derecognized when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

2.8.3 Impairment of financial assets at amortized
costs

An allowance for expected credit losses (ECL] is
recognized for all financial assets at amortized cost.
For debt instruments at FVOCI fair value, changes
in connection with the expected credit losses are

recognized in the income statement. ECL are based
on the difference between the contractual cash
flows and the cash flow that the Group expects to
receive. The Group applies the simplified approach
for measuring the ECL allowance for trade
receivables (note 2.6) and the general approach for
all other financial assets at amortized cost and debt
instruments at FVOCI.

The general approach for measuring the ECL
allowance is based on the amount of credit losses
resulting from default events expected to occur
during 12 months after the reporting date, unless
the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. If there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
ECL are based on lifetime expected credit losses.

To assess whether there is a significant increase

in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the

date of initial recognition. The Group considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor(internal and external credit rating as far
as available).

- Actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations.

- Actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower.

- A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments.

- The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to
the borrower a concession that the lender would
not otherwise consider.
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- |t becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual
payment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognized impairment
loss is recognized in the income statement.

2.9 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. The first-in, first-out (FIFO) method
is applied to finished goods inventory and the
weighted-average method is applied to production
inventory. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprise raw materials, direct labour
costs and other costs that can be directly allocated,
such as production overhead expenditures. Provision
for write-downs is established when there is a
reasonable indication that the Group will not be able
to recover the cost of the specific inventory items.

2.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment include land,
property used for operational purposes, facilities,
machinery, IT equipment and motor vehicles, as
well as plant and equipment under construction.

Property, plant and equipment are reported at their
purchase price or construction costs less scheduled
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of property, plant

and equipment includes the estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the asset and restoring
the site on which it is located [decommissioning

costs) and the corresponding liability is recognized
in accordance with IAS 37.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-Lline
method over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Land No depreciation
Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements (maximum) 10 years
Machinery and equipment 6 years
Furniture and fixtures 6 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
IT equipment 3 years

Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are
charged to expense as incurred. Major renewals and
betterments are capitalized and depreciated over
their estimated useful lives.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of,
the cost is removed from the asset account and

the corresponding accumulated depreciation is
removed from the related reserve account. Any gain
or loss resulting from such retirement or disposal is
included in the income statement.

2.11 Leases
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet
The balance sheet shows the following amounts

relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets

(in CHF 1 000) 2023 2022
Buildings 5122 6092
Machinery and equipment 72 92
Motor vehicles 810 668
IT equipment 24 87
Total 6 028 6939

Lease liabilities

- Current 2501 2410
- Non-current 3697 4678
Total 6198 7088
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Additions to the right-of-use assets during the
2022/23 financial year were CHF 1 872 (2021/22:
CHF 1 688).

The income statement shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

(in CHF 1 000) 2022/23 2021/22
Buildings 1979 2060
Machinery and equipment 48 63
Motor vehicles 404 422
IT equipment 69 83
Total 2500 2628
Interest expense

(included in financial expense) 165 171

The total cash outflow for leases in the 2022/23
financial year was CHF 2 478 (2021/22: CHF 2 592).

The Group's leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses,
equipment and cars. Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of maximum ten years but
may have extension options as described below.

The Group’s lease contracts generally do not contain
non-lease components.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants, but leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and

a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit

or loss over the lease period to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

- fixed payments

- variable lease payments that are based on a rate

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the lessee (which
has no recent third-party financing) would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment
with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

- any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated

over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life. The Group neither revalues its land
and buildings within property, plant and equipment
nor its buildings within right-of-use assets.
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Critical judgements in determining the lease term
In determining the lease term, management
considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option,
or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only
included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated). The
assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects this assessment and that is within the control
of the lessee.

2.12 Intangible assets

Goodwill

The acquisition method of accounting is used to

account for all business combinations, regardless

of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises:

(i) the fair values of the assets transferred,

(i} the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business,

(i) the equity interests issued by the Group,

(iv] the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement,
and

[v] the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of:

(i) the consideration transferred,

(i} the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

[iii) the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts

are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognized directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets as disclosed in note 15. Goodwill
is not amortized but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes

in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired
and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation

is made to those cash-generating units or groups

of cash-generating units that are expected to

benefit from the business combination in which

the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes, being
the operating segments. Additional information is
disclosed in note 5.

Research and development

Expenditure incurred on research and development
is distinguished between the research phase

and the development phase. All research phase
expenditure is charged to the income statement

as incurred. For development expenditure, it is
capitalized as an internally generated intangible
asset only if it meets strict criteria relating to
technical feasibility, intention to complete, ability to
use or sell, generation of future economic benefits,
availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete its development and reliable
measurement of the costs incurred. Expenditure
capitalized is amortized over the planned economic
life or in relation to the expected revenue over the
economic useful life, up to a maximum of five years
from the entry-into-service of the product or asset,
using the straight-line method. Intangible assets
that do not have a finite economic life and therefore
cannot be depreciated on a straight-line basis are
subject to an annual test for impairment.
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Software

Amounts paid out for acquired software such as
start-up, pre-opening, pre-operating, training costs
and all the pre-going-Llive costs are recognized

as expense when incurred and include project
initiation, solution mapping, preparation, process
workshops, initial system set-up, technical training,

creation of solution concepts, creation of prototypes,

implementation and maintenance costs relating to
the software and cloud providers.

Acquired computer software licenses for own use,
which are not an integral part of hardware, are
capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring the related software to use. These
software licenses are amortized using the straight-
line method over their useful economic lives of
three to five years, from the point at which the asset
is ready for use.

2.13 Assets held for sale

The Group’s assets are reclassified as held for sale
when a sale within one year is highly probable and
the assets are available for immediate sale in their
present condition.

Non-current assets held for sale are re-evaluated
at the lower of fair value less cost to sell or the
carrying amounts at the date they meet the held
for sale criteria. Any resulting impairment loss is
recognized in the income statement.

The liabilities of an asset classified as held for sale
or of a group of assets held for sale are disclosed
separately from other liabilities in the balance
sheet. Such assets and liabilities may not be offset
and disclosed as a single amount.

2.14 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are assessed on each balance
sheet date for any indication of impairment. If

any such indication exists, a test is carried out to
estimate if the carrying amount could exceed the
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and

its value in use. If this is the case, the appropriate
impairment loss is recognized.

The same method is applied to reversals of
impairment losses as for identifying impairment,
i.e., a review must be carried out on each reporting
date to assess whether there are indications that an
impairment loss might no longer exist or might have
decreased. If this is the case, the amount of the
decrease in impairment loss must be determined
(difference between recoverable amount and net
carrying amount].

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and
when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. Impairment is determined
by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the goodwill relates. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future
years.

2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method.

2.16 Other payables

Other payables include non-interest-bearing
liabilities, in particular VAT liabilities, liabilities for
social security payments, current and non-current
employee benefits (e.g. accrued paid annual leave
and overtime, bonuses, etc.) as well as accrued
expenses, short-term provisions and prepaid
income.
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Other payables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are divided into current and non-current
depending on the time to maturity and include bank
overdrafts, loans and finance leases.

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value,

net of transaction costs incurred. In subsequent
periods, loans are stated at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method with any difference
between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value being recognized in the income
statement over the terms of the borrowing.

2.18 Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group has a range of pension plans designed
to take account of local conditions and practices in
individual countries in which the Group operates.
The Swiss subsidiaries provide a defined benefit
plan for their employees; subsidiaries in other
jurisdictions provide both defined contribution
plans and defined benefit plans for their employees.
The plans are generally funded through payments
to insurance companies or trustee-administered
funds. Costs related to post-employment benefits
are recognized as personnel expenses allocated

to the functions to which the respective employees
contribute.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity (insurance company or fund). The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits
relating to employee services in the current and
prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension
plan that is not a defined contribution plan.
Defined benefit plans typically specify an amount

of pension benefit that an employee will receive
upon retirement, usually dependent on one or more
factors such as age, years of service and salary.

For defined benefit plans, the amount recognized

in the balance sheet corresponds to the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance
sheet date reduced by the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by an independent actuary using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting

the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension
liability. Any underfunding will be recognized

as a liability. Overfunding, however, will only be
capitalized to the extent that it represents economic
benefits for the Group.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognized immediately in
the income statement.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

Termination indemnity

[talian law requires the Italian group companies to
grant termination indemnity benefits (TFR) to all
employees. Up to a pension reform which introduced
new regulations for employee termination benefits
beginning from January 1, 2007, termination
indemnity benefits were classified and accounted for
as defined benefit plans. Beginning January 1, 2007,
the plans are considered to be defined contribution
plans. The termination benefit provision accrued up
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to December 31, 2006 continues to be accounted
for as a defined benefit plan and is recorded at the
actuarial present value of the benefits for which
the employees are currently entitled based on the
employee’s expected separation or retirement date.
The benefit obligation is not covered by separately
identified assets (unfunded plan).

2.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation because
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

A provision is measured on the best estimate
concept, i.e. the amount recognized as a provision
is the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation on the balance sheet
date. The amount of a provision is reviewed for
appropriateness at every balance sheet date.
Long-term provisions are discounted.

Contingent liabilities arise from past events where
the outcome depends on future events. As the
probability either cannot be measured reliably or
the probability for a subsequent outflow lies below
50 %, contingent liabilities are not recognized in the
balance sheet but are described in the Notes.

2.20 Equity

Equity includes share capital, capital reserves, other
reserves and retained earnings.

Share capital is the par value of all outstanding
shares.

Capital reserves contain gains and losses realized
on the sale of own shares held in previous years.

Retained earnings are profits, including legal and
free reserves, that are not distributed as dividends

and which are generally freely available, except legal
reserves.

Other reserves include currency translation
differences, actuarial gains and losses on post-
employment benefit obligations as well as their
related income tax effect on other comprehensive
income.

2.21 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group designs and manufactures electronic
control components for the global industrial
automation markets. Revenue from contracts with
customers comprises all revenues that are derived
from sales of products to third parties after deduction
of sales taxes and discounts. Sales are recognized
when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the customer,

the customer has full discretion over the use of

the product in their production and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

No element of financing is deemed present, as there
are no contracts where the period between revenue
recognition and payment by the customer exceeds
one year. The Group’s obligation to repair or replace
faulty products under standard warranty terms is
recognized as a provision (note 19).

A trade receivable [note 11) is recognized when the
products are delivered, as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the payment
is due. There are currently no material contract
assets and liabilities in connection with revenue
from contracts with customers.
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For internal and external reporting purposes the
Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with
customers into geographical regions which is
outlined in the segment information (note 5).

2.22 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs comprise interest and other costs
that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of
that asset.

2.23 Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period

is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on

the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate based on amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities

are not recognized if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than

a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable

profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized, or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilize those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognized
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. For leases under IFRS 16, the net
method is used.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group

will comply with all attached conditions. Note 23
provides further information on how the Group
accounts for government grants.
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2.25 Business combinations

All business combinations are accounted for

using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued, including the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred. The identifiable assets acquired, or
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at

fair value at the acquisition date. The excess of

the consideration transferred over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill and allocated to the cash-generating units
or group of cash-generating units depending on

the level at which it is monitored by management. If
the consideration transferred is lower than the fair
value of the acquirer’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired (bargain purchase), the difference is
recognized directly in the income statement.

3. Financial risk management

The Group classifies its financial assets and
liabilities into the following categories as per IFRS 7:

Financial assets

(in CHF 1 000) 2023 2022
Loans and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents 49 231 66775
Fixed deposits 15 470 -
Trade receivables 35819 31203
Other receivables 12755 8207
Total 113 275 106 185
Financial liabilities

(in CHF 1 000) 2023 2022
Other financial liabilities

Trade payables 17104 15728
Other payables 20121 21267
Leases 6468 7161
Total 43 693 44156

No additional disclosures of fair value are
presented because carrying value is a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk], credit risk and liquidity risk.

Generally, financial risk management focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on financial
performance, however, the Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge risk
exposures.

Risk management and its effectiveness is regularly
monitored by the Board of Directors.

a) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risks arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to EUR
(incl. pegged currencies) against USD. The Group
does not actively hedge foreign exchange risks,
however, where possible it seeks to reduce these
risks by natural hedging (cash inflows and outflows
in a specific currency should be in balance as much
as possible).

Foreign exchange risks arise when commercial
transactions of operations are not denominated in
the functional currency of the respective legal entity,
but instead in another currency. Foreign exchange
risks also arise from translation differences when
preparing the consolidated financial statements in
Swiss Francs, however, they are excluded for the
purpose of the sensitivity analysis for currency risk.
As stated above there are currency exposures with
respect to EUR against USD in the amount of CHF
1430 (2022: CHF 334). A change in foreign currency
exchange rates of EUR against USD of 10 %, with all
other variables held constant, would have caused
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the result of the Group to be higher/lower by around
CHF 143 (2022: CHF 33]) with a consequent effect on
the equity.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to either equity securities
price risk or commodity price risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank
overdrafts and long-term borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. As a result of the Group's positive net cash
position and having no borrowings, the interest rate
risk is considered to be immaterial. Consequently, a
sensitivity analysis has not been provided.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a local basis for accounts
receivable balances. Each local entity is responsible
for managing and analyzing the credit risk for each
of their new clients before standard payment and
delivery terms and conditions are offered. Local
management may also define credit limits for each
customer. As there is no independent rating for
most customers, local credit control departments
assess the credit quality of the customers,
considering their financial position, past experience
and other factors. There is no concentration of
credit risk in respect of trade receivables as the

The remaining contractual maturities are as follows:

Group has a large number of geographically diverse
customers.

Other credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents and deposits with banks. Counterparty
risk is minimized by ensuring that current

account deposits are maintained with financial
institutions whose credit ratings by one of the major
independent rating agencies are usually at least
“A-" or else the highest available in the country
where the relevant group company is domiciled.

The Group’s investments in fixed deposits are
considered to be low risk investments. The credit
ratings of the deposits are monitored for credit
deterioration and impairment risk is considered to
be minimal.

cJ Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group would not be
able to meet its financial obligations on time. The
monitoring of liquidity and allocation of resources
by the Group always allows for maintenance of
adequate liquidity levels. In addition, the Group
maintains credit lines with several financial
institutions.

The table below analyzes the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date; the amounts disclosed are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

as at March 31, 2023 up to between between more than

(in CHF 1 000) 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years 5 years Total
Trade payables 17104 - - - 17104
Other payables 19 578 79 - 464 20121
Leases 2520 2913 913 122 6468
Total 39 202 2992 913 586 43 693
as at March 31, 2022 up to between between more than

(in CHF 1 000) 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years 5 years Total
Trade payables 15728 - - - 15728
Other payables 20 522 83 - 662 21267
Leases 2473 3105 1329 254 7161
Total 38723 3188 1329 916 44156
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3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objective is to maintain a
strong equity base in order to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain
the future development of the business. As of
March 31, 2023, equity represented 71.2 % of total
assets (2022: 68.7 %).

The Group reviews the capital structure and the
equity of the subsidiaries as required to cover the
associated risks.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure,

the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares and issue or reduce debt.

4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events

that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial periods mainly relate to income taxes,
employee benefit obligations, allowance for doubtful
accounts and warranties.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to taxation in numerous
jurisdictions. In this respect the Group and its
subsidiary companies are regularly exposed

to audits by the various governmental bodies

and authorities, where the outcome of findings
particularly in the area of transfer pricing depends

very often on individual judgements. Considerable
judgement is required in determining tax provisions.
Liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues are
recognized based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. These estimates

could prove to be too pessimistic, or, in a negative
scenario, additional tax liabilities would have to be
recorded in the future. Additional information is
disclosed in note 20.

Furthermore, the capitalization of deferred tax
assets is based on assumptions about the future
profitability of certain group companies. There

is an inherent risk that these estimates made by
management may turn out to be too optimistic or
too pessimistic.

Employee benefit obligations

The present value of the pension obligations
depends on several factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using several assumptions.
The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income] for pensions include the discount rate.
Any changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension obligations.

The group companies determine the appropriate
discount rate at the end of each year. This is the
interest rate that should be used to determine the
present value of estimated future cash outflows
expected to be required to settle the pension
obligations. In determining the appropriate discount
rate, the group companies consider the interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid and that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension
obligations.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations
are based in part on current market conditions.
Additional information is disclosed in note 18.
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Covid-19 and the Russia-Ukraine war

Management has been closely monitoring the
effects if any of Covid-19 pandemic impacts
particularly in China and of the Russia-Ukraine war
on the Group's financial position and performance.
The Group’s profitability has neither been negatively
impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic nor the Russia-
Ukraine war.

5. Segment reporting

The Group is an international electronics company
active in designing, manufacturing and marketing
electronic control components for the global
markets of industrial and building automation.

The Group has only one operating and reportable
segment, the information for the segment
therefore mainly corresponds to the figures in the
consolidated financial statements. When the Group
implemented IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the
following circumstances led to the conclusion that it
only has one reportable segment:

- Internal monthly reporting for the only operating
segment is carried out in concentrated form for
the whole Group.

- Because of the close integration of the group
companies, focusing individually on production,
logistics, marketing and selling, key decisions
are, consequently, made by corporate
management at consolidated group level and
not on the basis of the financial statements of
individual legal entities.

- The holding company only provides corporate
services; its operating result is monitored in the
internal monthly reporting.

The reconciliation of operating profit (EBIT) to profit
before income tax is as follows:

(in CHF 1 000) 2022/23 2021/22
Operating profit (EBIT)

- Automation Components 39798 32133
- Reconciling items (499) (1085)
Total operating profit (EBIT) 39 299 31048
Financial income (expense), net (534) (591)
Profit before income tax 38765 30 457

Segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to total
assets and liabilities as follows:

(in CHF 1 000) 2023 2022
Assets

- Automation Components 163 292 146 620
- Reconciling items 22055 22497
Total assets 185 347 169 117
Liabilities

- Automation Components 52090 50384
- Reconciling items 1373 2538
Total liabilities 53463 52922
Geographical information

Revenue from sale of goods by customer location

(in CHF 1 000) 2022/23 2021/22
Switzerland 4090 2438
Germany 21453 20327
Austria 22967 12 649
Other EMEA 95754 87709
Total EMEA 144 264 123123
USA 28 983 24 427
Other Americas 10 786 10 107
Total Americas 39769 34534
China 18 410 19156
Other Asia 7158 6 576
Total Asia 25568 25732
Total Group 209 601 183 389
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Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets by location of assets

Employee benefit expense is stated after deducting
government grants received for wage subsidies and

(nCHF1000 S =2  Short-time work compensation as shown in note 23.
Switzerland 1696 1933
Germany 369 446
Austria 70 19
Other EMEA 16 263 16902 7. Other operating income and expense
Total EMEA 18 398 19 300
USA 481 609  (in CHF1000) 2022/23 2021/22
Other Americas 146 209
Total Americas 627 818  Other operating income
China 3609 3725 Gain onsale of property, plant
Other Asia 192 243  and equipment 91 62
Total Asia 3801 3968 Gain on disposal of P&T business - 189
Total Group 22 826 24 086 Reversal of provisions - 204
Other 237 143
Revenues from external customers Total other operating income 328 598
The Group’s revenues are split into product groups )
determined as Controls 46 % (2021/22: 43 %), Other operating expense
Sensors 20% (2021/22: 23 %) and Switches 34 % Loss on disposal of property, plant
(2021/22: 34%). However, these product groups do and equipment (8) -
not represent operating segments, because they are  Personnel indemnity cost (125) (144)
not used for decision-making purposes. Other (537) (246)
Total other operating expense (670) (390)
As stated above, the Group has a large number )
of customers and, during the periods, no single Total other operating income
customer accounted for more than 10% of the (expense), net (342) 208
Group’s revenue from the sale of goods.
8. Financial income and expense
6. Employee benefit expense
(in CHF 1 000) 2022/23 2021/22
(in CHF 1000) 2022/23 2021/22
Financial income
Wages and salaries 44 611 44238 Interest income from financial assets 105 34
Post-employment benefit cost 1090 1163  Total financial income 105 34
Other social security cost 6730 6392
Other expenses 656 708  Financial expense
Termination benefit - - Interest expense and finance charges (113) (117)
Total 53 087 52501 Interest expense for lease liabilities (165) (171)
Net foreign exchange loss (361) (337)
Employee benefit expense is included in the income  Total financial expense (639) (625)
statement under cost of goods sold, research &
development expense and selling, general and Total financial income (expense), net (534) (591)
administrative expense.
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9. Earnings per share

Earnings per registered share are computed based
on the weighted average number of registered
shares of CHF 3.00 each outstanding during the
years.

Earnings per bearer share are computed based on
the weighted average number of bearer shares of

CHF 15.00 each outstanding during the years.

Basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows:

on July 26, 2022, resolved to distribute a dividend
for the financial year 2021/22, with value August 2,
2022, as follows (in CHF):

CHF 2.40
CHF 12.00
CHF 1000 8529

brdinary dividend per registered share

Ordinary dividend per bearer share

Total ordinary dividend paid

At the Annual General Meeting to be held on
July 25, 2023, payment of the following dividend for
2022/23 will be proposed:

Dividend per registered share CHF 2.40
(in CHF 1 000) 2022/23 2021/22  Dividend per bearer share CHF 12.00
Proposed dividend CHF1000 8529
Net profit attributable to owners of
Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG 28 229 22036
Percentage of registered shares 11. Trade receivables
outstanding in comparison
with the share capital outstanding 45.03 % 45.03%  (in CHF1000) 2023 2022
Percentage of bearer shares
outstanding in comparison Trade receivables 36 201 31842
with the share capital outstanding 54.97 % 54.97%  Less provision for receivables (382) (639)
Total 35 819 31203
Registered shares
Net profit attributable to
registered shareholders 12712 9923 Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables
Average number of shares (in CHF 1 000) 2022/23 2021/22
outstanding 1600000 1600000
Balance at April 1 (639) (735)
Basic and diluted earnings per Utilization of provision 49 94
registered share (CHF) 7.95 6.20  Reversal of unused provision 298 1
Increase in provision (113) (51)
Bearer shares Foreign exchange effect 23 52
Net profit attributable to Balance at March 31 (382) (639)
bearer shareholders 15 517 12113
Average number of shares
outstanding 390 710 390710 Ageing analysis of trade receivables (in CHF 1000) Not
as at March 31, 2023 Total impaired
Basic and diluted earnings per
bearer share (CHF) 39.71 31.00  Not overdue 29 393 29 393
Less than 1 month overdue 3580 3580
Between 1-3 months overdue 1059 1059
Between 3-6 months overdue 1777 1777
10. Dividends paid and proposed Between 6-12 months overdue 94 12
More than 12 months overdue 298 26
Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG pays one dividend per Total 36 201 35 847

financial year. The Annual General Meeting held
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as at March 31, 2022 Total impailjs(; The carrying amounts of the Group's other
receivables are denominated in the following

Not overdue 26 483 26483 currencies:

Less than 1 month overdue 3358 3336

Between 1-3 months overdue 1185 1082 (in CHF1000) 2023 2022

Between 3-6 months overdue 534 474

Between 6-12 months overdue 98 72  EUR 12 815 8282

More than 12 months overdue 184 27 USD 323 492

Total 31842 31474 CNY 771 493
SEK 255 40

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables  Other 613 633

are denominated in the following currencies: Total 14777 9940

(in CHF 1000) 2023 2022 All non-current receivables are due within five
years from the end of the reporting period. No

EUR 18 509 15267 impairments were recognized on other receivables

UsD 5320 4136 in 2022/23 (2021/22: nil).

CNY 4678 2926

SEK 1644 3126

DKK 1672 1619

NOK 815 960 13. Inventories

CAD 980 1124

GBP 966 834  (inCHF1000) 2023 2022

Other 1235 1211

Total 35 819 31203 Raw materials and supplies 18765 15737
Work in progress 4620 3827
Finished goods 23394 17 512
Inventories, gross 46 779 37076

12. Other receivables Less allowance for valuation (3472) (3122)
Total 43 307 33954

(in CHF 1 000) 2023 2022
The cost of inventories recognized as expense and

Current included in cost of goods sold in 2022/23 amounted

VAT and other tax receivables 11390 7219 to CHF 99 632 (2021/22: CHF 84 934).

Advances to suppliers 160 318

Receivables from suppliers 899 280

Other receivables 306 390

Prepaid expense 1632 1169

Total current 14 387 9 376

Non-current

Deposits for deferred employee

compensation 25 200

Deposits for rental contracts 348 347

Other receivables 17 17

Total non-current 390 564

Total other receivables 14777 9940
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14. Property plant and equipment

Machinery  Furniture
Leasehold  Construction and and Motor IT

(in CHF 1 000) Land Buildings  improvements in progress  equipment fixtures  vehicles equipment Total
Historical cost

Balance at April 1, 2021 90 1231 6 838 13 33177 3318 2388 5285 52340
Additions - - 232 1473 138 219 341 2403
Disposals - - (412) - (5267) (798) (292) (810)  (7579)
Currency translation differences (7) (94) (361) (1) (1743) (164) (142) (315)  (2827)
Reclassifications - - - (4) 4 (102) - 102 -
Balance at March 31, 2022 83 1137 6 297 8 27 644 2392 2173 4603 44 337
Additions - - 436 - 1804 172 454 371 3237
Disposals - - (38) - (28) (47) (381) (401) (895)
Currency translation differences (3) (36) (271) - (1302) (77) (86) (176) (1951)
Reclassifications - - 1 - 4 (1) - (4) -
Balance at March 31, 2023 80 1101 6 425 8 28122 2439 2160 4393 44728
Accumulated depreciation

Balance at April 1, 2021 - (687) (5025) - (27435) (2944) (1655) (4778) (42524)
Annual depreciation - (23) (308) - (1984) (131) (311) (256) (3 013)
Depreciation on disposals - - 412 - 5152 798 252 807 7421
Currency translation differences - 53 271 - 1514 143 100 283 2364
Reclassifications - - - - - 102 - (102) -
Balance at March 31, 2022 - (657) (4 650) - (22753) (2032) (1614) (4046) (35752)
Annual depreciation - (23) (389) - (1636) (135) (227) (231)  (2641)
Depreciation on disposals - 33 - 28 45 369 402 877
Currency translation differences - 21 194 - 1048 67 56 145 1531
Reclassifications - - - - - 1 - (1) -
Balance at March 31, 2023 - (659) (4 812) - (23313) (2054) (1416) (3731) (35985)
Net book value

at March 31, 2022 83 480 1647 8 4 891 360 559 557 8585
at March 31, 2023 80 442 1613 8 4 809 385 744 662 8743

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is included in the income statement under cost of goods
sold, research & development expense and selling, general and administrative expense.
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15. Intangible assets

(in CHF 1 000) Goodwill Software Total
Historical cost

Balance at April 1, 2021 6338 3964 10 302
Additions - 185 185
Disposals - (132) (132)
Currency translation differences 394 (143) 251
Balance at March 31, 2022 6732 3874 10 606
Additions - 3 3
Disposals - (6) (6)
Currency translation differences (60) (79) (139)
Balance at March 31, 2023 6 672 3792 10 464
Accumulated amortization

Balance at April 1, 2021 - (2100) (2100)
Annual amortization - (217) (217)
Amortization on disposals - 132 132
Currency translation differences - 141 141
Balance at March 31, 2022 - (2 044) (2044)
Annual amortization - (443) (443)
Amortization on disposals - 6 6
Currency translation differences - 72 72
Balance at March 31, 2023 - (2409) (2409)
Net book value

at March 31, 2022 6732 1830 8562
at March 31, 2023 6672 1383 8 055

Within intangible assets only goodwill is assumed

to have an indefinite life. Amortization of intangible
assets is included in the income statement under cost
of goods sold, research & development expense and

selling, general and administrative expense.

All goodwill resulting from past business combinations
is monitored for internal management purposes at the
operating segment (ACBUJ level, as reflected in these
consolidated financial statements. Goodwill has been

tested for impairment as at March 31, 2023 and

March 31, 2022 at this level. No impairment charge

arose.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
determined based on value in use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering

a three-year period. Cash flows beyond the three-year
period are extrapolated using an appropriate estimated
growth rate of 1.5% at March 31, 2023 and March 31,
2022. This growth rate is consistent with forecasts
included in industry reports specific to the industry in
which the CGU operates. The assumptions made reflect
experience and/or market expectations. A decrease

in projected growth rate after the year 2025/26 to zero
would not change the result of the impairment test.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is based on the weighted average cost of capital and is
correspondingly adjusted to the specific business risks.
The pre-tax discount rate applied was 8.98% at

March 31, 2023, and 8.08% at March 31, 2022.
Management is of the opinion that possible changes in
the assumptions made, barring any exceptional events,
would not lead to any impairment charge.
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16. Other payables

17. Borrowings

(in CHF1000) 2023 2022 This section sets out an analysis of net cash (debt)

and the movements in net cash (debt) for each of
Current the years presented:
VAT payable 2407 2953
Payables to employees 541 791 Net cash (debt) reconciliation
Payables for social security, pensions
and other employee costs 686 647  (in CHF1000) 2023 2022
Insurance - 37
Other payables 352 509 Current
Advances from customers 162 320 Cashand cash equivalents 49 231 66 775
Accrued warranty costs 249 315 Lease liabilities (2501) (2410)
Accrued personnel expense 10 880 11179  Net current cash (debt) 46 730 64 365
Accrued distributor costs 307 58
Accrued ERP consultants 215 1376  Non-current
Accrued consultants 923 834  Lease liabilities (3697) (4 678)
Other accrued expense 1566 1503 Net non-current cash (debt) (3697) (4 678)
Total current 18 288 20 522

Net cash (debt) 43 033 59 687
Non-current
Other payables 521 548
Accrued personnel expense 22 197
Total non-current 543 745
Total other payables 18 831 21267

Liabilities from financing activities Other assets

(in CHF 1000) Borrowings Leases Sub-total Cash Total
Net cash (debt) at April 1, 2021 - (8512) (8512) 62466 53954
Cash flows - 2592 2592 6 911 9503
Acquisition - leases - (1168) (1168) - (1168)
Foreign exchange adjustments - - - (2602) (2.602)
Net cash (debt) at March 31, 2022 - (7 088) (7 088) 66 775 59 687
Cash flows - 2478 2478 (15 579) (13101)
Acquisition - leases - (1588) (1588) - (1588)
Foreign exchange adjustments - - - (1965) (1965)
Net cash (debt) at March 31, 2023 - (6 198) (6 198) 49 231 43 033
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18. Employee benefit obligations

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet for

pension benefits are determined as follows:

The employee benefit expense charged in the
income statement under cost of goods sold,
research & development expense and selling,

general and administrative expense is as follows:

(in CHF 1 000) 2023 2022  (in CHF1000) 2022/23 2021/22
Present value of funded obligations 7496 7595 Defined benefit plans 385 465
Fair value of plan assets (6 488) (6394)  Defined contribution plans 1090 1163
Underfunding 1008 1201 Total 1475 1628
Present value of unfunded obligations 2849 3582

Total 3 857 4783 The amounts recognized in the income statement

The movement in the defined benefit obligation over

are determined as follows:

the year is as follows: (in CHF 1000) 2022/23 2021/22
(in CHF 1 000) 2022/23 2021/22  Defined benefit plans

Current service cost 419 427
Balance at April 1 11133 13189  Interest cost 172 90
Current service cost 419 427  Return on plan assets (expected) (84) (28)
Contributions from plan participants 104 61 Administrative expense 2 2
Interest cost 172 90  Past service cost (119) (23)
Actuarial losses (gains) (574) (672)  Amortization of net gain (loss) (5) (3)
Benefits paid (365) (1061) Curtailment loss (gain) recognized - -
Past service cost (119) (23)  Total defined benefit plans 385 465
Settlements and curtailments - (468)
Exchange differences (426) (410) Defined contribution plans
Balance at March 31 10 344 11133  Employer contributions 1090 1163

Total defined contribution plans 1090 1163
The movement in the fair value of plan assets over
the year is as follows: Total 1475 1628
(in CHF 1 000) 2022/23 2021/22
Balance at April 1 6394 6118
Contributions from employer 233 195
Contributions from plan participants 104 61
Interest income 84 28
Actuarial gains (losses) (231) 208
Benefits paid 118 (156)
Change due to plan combinations (14) (14)
Administrative expense (2) (2)
Exchange differences (198) (44)
Balance at March 31 6 488 6 394
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The remeasurement recognized in the statement
of other comprehensive income is comprised as
follows:

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
a change of +/- 0.25% in these assumptions is as
follows:

(in CHF 1000) 2022/23 2021/22  (in CHF1000) +0.25% -0.25%
Actuarial gains (losses) Discount rate (164) 174
- arising from changes in Inflation rate 18 (18)
demographic assumptions (1) - Future salary increases 46 (40)
- arising from changes in Future pension increases 101 (26)
financial assumptions 881 980
- arising from plan experience (307) (310) Assumptions regarding future mortality experience
- arising from revaluation of assets (234) 208 are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with
- Return on plan assets published statistics and experience in each territory.
(excluding amounts in net interest) 3 (1) Mortality assumptions for Switzerland are based on
Total 342 877 post-retirement mortality tables BVG 2020 GT and

During the next financial year, the Group expects
employer contributions to defined benefit plans to
amount to CHF 268.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligation is 13.2 years (2022: 13.4 years).

for Norway on the tables K 2013 BE.
The methods and types of assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change

compared to the previous period.

The major categories of plan assets are as follows:

The principal actuarial assumptions are as follows: 2023 2022
2022/23 2021/22  Switzerland

Cash and cash equivalents 2.40 % 0.60 %
Switzerland Equity instruments 30.90 % 33.60 %
Discount rate 2.15 % 1.20 %  Debt instruments 23.00 % 24.30 %
Inflation rate 1.50 % 0.75%  Property 27.40 % 25.50 %
Future salary increases 2.00 % 1.25%  Other 16.30 % 16.00 %
Future pension increases 0.00 % 0.00%  Total 100.00 % 100.00 %
Norway Norway
Discount rate 3.00 % 2.58%  Cash and cash equivalents 0.00 % 0.00 %
Inflation rate 0.00 % 0.00%  Equity instruments 12.20 % 10.30 %
Future salary increases 3.75% 2.75%  Debt instruments 77.40 % 78.50 %
Future pension increases 3.50% 2.50%  Property 9.90 % 10.40 %

Other 0.50 % 0.80 %

Total 100.00 % 100.00 %

All equity and debt instruments are quoted or daily
traded (mostly collective funds).
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Carlo Gavazzi operates two funded defined benefit
plans in Switzerland and Norway. The pension
plans grant old-age, disability, spouse and child-
pensions. The benefits are granted in relation to

a percentage of the salary (in Norway final salary
plan]. In Switzerland, when reaching retirement
age, the savings capital will be converted at a

fixed conversion rate into an old-age pension. If an
employee leaves his employment with Carlo Gavazzi
prior to reaching pensionable age, the cumulative
balance of the savings account is withdrawn from
the pension plan and is transferred into the pension
plan of the employee’s new employer. If a pension
fund would enter into an underfunded status,

the active members and Carlo Gavazzi would be
required to make additional contributions until such
time as the fund is in a fully funded position. Both
the Swiss and the Norwegian plans are expected to
outperform corporate bonds in the long-term.
Pension plan assets of the subsidiaries in Norway
and Switzerland are invested with trustee-
administered funds. Investment strategy and
decisions are made at the sole discretion of the
respective fund trustees. The Boards of Trustees
handle the general management of the pension
schemes, ensure compliance with the statutory
requirements, define the strategic objectives and
policies of the pension schemes and identify the
resources for their implementation. They determine
the level of benefits and the investment strategy for
the plan assets based on asset/liability analyses
performed periodically. The basis for these analyses
are the statutory pension obligations as these
largely determine the cash flows of the funds. The
Boards decide also on the asset allocation and are
responsible towards the authorities for the correct
administration of the collective foundations.

Subsidiaries in all other jurisdictions provide
unfunded pension plans only.

19. Other provisions

Restoration
(in CHF 1000) cost

Warranties

Total

Current

Balance at March 31, 2021 -

Additions -

Utilization -

Reversal of unused provision -

Currency translation differences -

Balance at March 31, 2022 -

Additions - 1290 1290
Utilization - - -
Reversal of unused provision - - -
Currency translation differences - - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 - 1290 1290
Non-current
Balance at March 31, 2021 434 2 436
Additions 3 - 3
Utilization - (2) (2)
Reversal of unused provision - - -
Currency translation differences (28) - (28)
Balance at March 31, 2022 409 - 409
Additions - - -
Utilization - - -
Reversal of unused provision - - -
Currency translation differences (17) - (17)
Balance at March 31, 2023 392 - 392
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20. Income taxes

Income tax expense is as follows:

At the balance sheet date, the deferred tax assets

and liabilities were attributable to items in the

balance sheet as follows:

(in CHF 1000) 2022/23 2021/22
(in CHF 1 000) 2023 2022
Current income taxes 11576 7877
Adjustments for taxes of prior periods (36) 379  Trade receivables (15) (312)
Deferred taxes (1004) 165 Inventories 1906 1011
Total 10 536 8421 Property, plant and equipment 305 334
Intangible assets 28 26
Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG is incorporated in Other assets 8 319
Switzerland, but the Group operates in numerous Other payables 1169 1320
countries with differing tax laws and rates. Profits Leases 43 28
are generated primarily outside Switzerland. Tax loss carry-forwards 271 244
The Group calculates its expected tax rate as a Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 3715 2970
weighted average of the tax rates in the relevant
tax jurisdictions. of which reported in the balance sheet as:
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to income  Deferred income tax assets 3917 3159
tax expense is as follows: Deferred income tax liabilities (202) (189)

(in CHF 1000) 2022/23 2021/22
Profit before income tax 38765 30 457
Average tax rate 25.71% 25.72%
Expected income tax expense 9970 7833
Effect of non-tax-deductible expense 714 67
Effect of non-taxable items (711) (477)
Effect of waived capitalization of

tax losses 1 2
Utilization of previously unrecognized

tax losses (170) (92)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods  (36) 379
Taxes not directly related to income 442 361
Other 326 348
Effective income tax expense 10 536 8421

Variations in the average tax rate depend on the
breakdown of results among the various entities and
tax jurisdictions. The average tax rate did not differ

materially from the previous year.
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For tax return purposes, certain subsidiaries have tax loss carry-forwards as follows:

Summary of tax loss carry-forwards

Gross value Tax benefits

(in CHF 1000) 2023 2022 2023 2022
Expiring in

1-8 years - - - -
Unlimited 1234 1107 271 244
Tax loss carry-forwards capitalized at March 31 1234 1107 271 244
Expiring in

1year - 13 - 2
4 years - 71 - 11
5years 99 354 12 53
6 years 1033 1029 129 154
7 years 1147 1023 143 153
8 years - 796 - 119
Unlimited 3918 4104 1331 1399
Tax loss carry-forwards not capitalized at March 31 6197 7 390 1615 1891
Total tax loss carry-forwards 7431 8 497 1886 2135

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax
loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realization
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. The major amounts are derived
from non-profitable subsidiaries which, based on
approved mid-term business plans and budgets,
are not expected to generate taxable profits in the
foreseeable future.

21. Share capital

The share capital of Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG

at March 31, 2023 amounts to CHF 10 661 (2022:
CHF 10 661) and is divided into registered shares

of CHF 3.00 each and bearer shares of CHF 15.00
each. Each share carries one vote and all shares are
entitled to receive dividends. The registered share
capital amounts to CHF 4 800 divided into

1 600 000 registered shares of CHF 3.00 each

(2022: 1 600 000 of CHF 3.00 each). The bearer share
capital amounts to CHF 5 861 divided into 390 710
bearer shares of CHF 15.00 each (2022: 390 710 of
CHF 15.00 each]. All issued shares are fully paid.

There are no restrictions in the Statutes of Carlo
Gavazzi Holding AG concerning the registration of
registered shares. Under Swiss law, a company can
hold up to a maximum of 10 % of its own shares. As
at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the Group
held no own shares.
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22. Other reserves

Foreign exchange Other Total other
(in CHF 1 000) translation reserve OCI reserves
Equity at March 31, 2021 (22 807) (1 619) (24 426)
Actuarial gains (losses) on employee
benefit obligations, net of tax - 747 747
Exchange difference on
translation of foreign
operations (4 269) - (4 269)
Other comprehensive income
for the year (4 269) 747 (3522)
Total comprehensive income
for the year (4 269) 747 (3522)
Equity at March 31, 2022 (27 076) (872) (27 948)
Actuarial gains (losses) on employee
benefit obligations, net of tax - 282 282
Exchange difference on
translation of foreign
operations (4 293) - (4 293)
Other comprehensive income
for the year (4 293) 282 (4 o11)
Total comprehensive income
for the year (4 293) 282 (4 o11)
Equity at March 31, 2023 (31369) (590) (31959)
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23. Government grants

Government grants amounting to CHF 248 (2022:
219) were received mainly for job support, wage
subsidies, short-time work compensation and
quarantine benefits in connection with Covid-19
support. Government grants are included in the
income statement under cost of goods sold,
research & development expense and selling,
general and administrative expense. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies
attaching to these grants. The Group did not benefit
directly from any other forms of government
assistance.

24. Commitments and contingencies

Guarantees and sureties

The Group has guaranteed the debt to banks

and other third parties on behalf of consolidated
subsidiaries to cover banking facilities amounting
to CHF 1425 (2022: CHF 1 460). These guarantees
have no expiry date and continue to be effective if
the respective banking facilities continue to be
extended.

There are no loans and overdraft facilities granted
to group companies by outside lenders which have
been collateralized by pledging assets.

Pending legal cases

There are no legal cases pending against the Group
where the outcome could have any material effect
on the financial statements.
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25. Related party transactions

The related parties consist primarily of shareholders
(with voting rights of more than 20 %), members of
the Board of Directors and members of Executive
Management. Valeria Gavazzi, Zug, indirectly
controls 73.85% (2021/22: 73.85 %) of the voting
rights at the end of the reporting period through
Barguzin Participation SA, Zug.

Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 27.

Key management compensation

Key management consists of members of the
Board of Directors and members of Executive
Management. The compensation paid or payable to
key management personnel (all for short-term
benefits), including employer’s social security
contributions, is as follows:

(in CHF 1000) 2022/23 2021/22
Key management personnel compensation

Short-term employee benefits 3192 1910
Post-employment benefits 93 45
Long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Share-based payments - -
Total 3 285 1955

At the end of the reporting period, CHF 1 142
(2022: CHF 973]) was outstanding within accrued
personnel expense in other payables [note 16).
Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in
the compensation report on pages 35 to 40.

Other transactions

During the year, the Group received advisory
services from the member of the Board of Directors
Stefano Premoli Trovati for a total of CHF 35
(2021/22: CHF 75). In addition, he received board
fees from subsidiary companies of CHF nil (2021/22:
CHF 24). At the end of the reporting period, CHF nil
(2022: CHF 75) was outstanding within accrued
consultants in other payables (note 16). Qutstanding
balances at the end of the reporting period are
interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There
were no further transactions other than dividends
paid to shareholders. Dividends paid to related party
shareholders amounted to CHF 3 536 (2021/22:

CHF 3 536). Transactions relating to dividends were
on the same terms and conditions that applied to all
other shareholders.

There were no other significant transactions with
related parties during the periods.

26. Events after the balance sheet date

There were no events subsequent to the balance
sheet date that require adjustment to or disclosure
in the financial statements.
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27. Subsidiaries

At March 31, 2023 the following non-listed companies were held by Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG:

Percentage of shares held

Company name and domicile

Share capital

(Local currency in1000)

100% CARLO GAVAZZI PARTICIPATION DANMARK A/S, Hadsten, Denmark DKK 10 000
100% CARLO GAVAZZI GmbH, Vienna, Austria EUR 73
100% CARLO GAVAZZI SA, Vilvoorde, Belgium EUR 224
100% CARLO GAVAZZI (CANADA) Inc, Mississauga, Canada CAD 5
100% CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION (KUNSHAN) Co Ltd, Kunshan, China CNY 7484
100% CARLO GAVAZZI HANDEL A/S, Hadsten, Denmark DKK 5000
100% CARLO GAVAZZIINDUSTRI A/S, Hadsten, Denmark DKK 10 000

100% CARLO GAVAZZIINDUSTRI KAUNAS UAB, Kaunas, Lithuania EUR 10

100% CARLO GAVAZZI OY AB, Espoo, Finland EUR 50
100% CARLO GAVAZZI Sarl, Roissy, France EUR 274
100% CARLO GAVAZZI GmbH, Darmstadt, Germany EUR 500
100% CARLO GAVAZZI UK Ltd, Frimley, Great Britain GBP 100
100% CARLO GAVAZZI SpA, Lainate, Italy EUR 2300
100% CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION SpA, Lainate, Italy EUR 7180
100% CARLO GAVAZZI LOGISTICS SpA, Lainate, Italy EUR 1500
100% CARLO GAVAZZI CONTROLS SpA, Belluno, Italy EUR 916
100% CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION (M) Sdn Bhd, Petaling Jaya, Malaysia MYR 730
100% CARLO GAVAZZI Ltd, Zejtun, Malta EUR 1048
100% CARLO GAVAZZI BV, Beverwijk, Netherlands EUR 136
100% CARLO GAVAZZI AS, Porsgrunn, Norway NOK 1000
100% CARLO GAVAZZI UNIPESSOAL Lda, Lisbon, Portugal EUR 25
100% CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION SINGAPORE Pte Ltd, Singapore USD 358
100% CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION (CHINA) Co Ltd, Shenzhen, China CNY 1735

100% CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION HONG KONG Ltd, Hong Kong HKD 50

100% CARLO GAVAZZI SA, Leioa, Spain EUR 451
100% CARLO GAVAZZI AB, Karlstad, Sweden SEK 800
100% CARLO GAVAZZI AG, Steinhausen, Switzerland CHF 200
100% CARLO GAVAZZI Inc, Buffalo Grove, USA USD 5
1% CARLO GAVAZZI Mexico SA de CV, Naucalpan de Juarez, Mexico MXN 1328

99% CARLO GAVAZZI Mexico SA de CV, Naucalpan de Juarez, Mexico MXN 1328
100% CARLO GAVAZZI Automacio Ltda, Sao Paulo, Brazil BRL 10163
100% CARLO GAVAZZI SERVICES AG, Steinhausen, Switzerland CHF 500

There were no major changes in principal subsidiaries held by the Group during the year ended

March 31, 2023.

In all cases, the voting rights in the subsidiaries are the same as the percentages of shares held.
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Report of the statutory auditor

to the General Meeting of Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG

Steinhausen
Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinkon
We Ruve audited the consolidated fmancial slsements of Carlld Gavarn Holding AG and its subssdures (tha Group),
which comprse the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023, the balence sheet as at 31
March 2023, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash fiows for the year then ended, and notes to
te consolcaied firancial stalements, incuding a summany of significant accounting and valuaton polices.

Im our opiracn, The consolidated Bnancssal siatements (pages 456 o T8) give & true and el vies of e consolidated finan-
cial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023 and its consclidated finandal performance and its consclidated cash
fvwa for the year then ended in actordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with
Swiiss law,

Basis for apinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with Swiss law, Infemational Standards on Auditing (1545) and Swiss Standands
on Auditing (SA-CH), Our responsibiiSies under those provisions and standards are fusther described in the Ausditor's
respondibdities for the audit of e consoldabed Minancial stabemenla’ section of our report W ane indepersdent of tha
Growup in accordancs with the provisions of Swiss law and e requiremants of the Swiss audit professicn, as vwall as e
iniernational Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants finchuding Infemational independence Standards) issued by
e nbemabonal Eshices Standards Board for Accouniants (JESBA Coda), and wa have fulflled cur olher aihical responsi-
bdlities in accordance with these requscments,

We believe that the audet evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriale 10 provide & basis for our opinion.

Cur audit appraach

Orverview Crverall Growp maberabty: CHF 17250000

Wa conciuded full $cope audit work 8l 23 reporing units in 18 cownines. Our
audit scope addressed B4% of the Group®s revenue and B84 of the Group's

Marpradny AR
As ey audit mager the folicwing area of Toous has beon dentifed:
Waluation of inveriony
Aindil scope
Ky asdi
Mabtiers

PricewmterhonseCoopers AG, Dammstrasse 21, Postfach, 6302 Zug, Switzerland
Tebefon: +41 58 702 68 o0, www. pwech
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Materiality

Thar scope of cwr audit was influenced by our applcaton of materiality. Owr audil opinion aims 10 provide neasonabbs
assurance that the consclidated finarcal statemants ane free from maledial misstatemaent. Missiatoments may arse due
1o fraisd o armer, They ans Soniadensd malenal il ndeideally of 0 aggnegate, they coild maianably Be axpechid bS rfl-
ance e sconomac decsions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated financial statemeants.

Based on cur professional judgemaent, we determined cerlain guantitative threshaolds for matedality, including the overll
Greaup ralonakly for e consclidated inanoal stalaments a5 8 whobe & 2l o0l m e lbie Bales. Thada, logathes wih
gualitative cormadiratons, halped us to debedmirs the soope of our aud® and the retune, iming and et of uar audil
procedures and o evakiate the effect of misstalements, both indridually and in aggeregate, on the consolidated financial
SIMEns &6 & whols,

Overall Greup makeriality CHF 1250000

Benchmark applicd Fearvaniss from sale of goods

Rationabe for the matedality bench-  We chose revenas from sabe of goods as the benchmark given the volatilty of

mark applied the resalis in the past years and because, in our view, il S & reasonable and
pnataly capted benchanark

Wa agread with the Audit Commitiss that we would repar o tem messtatemants above CHF E2°500 identified during
o Al as well s any misstalemanis bk thal amoun which, n our v, wamanld nepoting Tor quallatong feEons

Andit scope

We taiored the scope of our audit in order fo perform sufficient work 10 enable us o provide an opinicn on the consal-
dabed financal statemenls 68 a whele, lking nlo acoount Bha struclurs of the Group, the ACOOURENG ProceRsss and con-
g, and e induslny inowhich the Groug oparates

Thi audil strategy for i suedil of th condclidated finandal slatemaents was delermingd taking into account (hs work
parformad by the Group auditor and the component audilors. As a significant sub-corsalidation was audibed by & PwC
Component laam, wa enswred that, as Group sudilor, wa wire sufficently nvolved in the audil 1o assess whathor suffi-
ol SEP o iate aladn dvidencs was oblained o th work of the componsnt audier 1o provide & bais Tor our oprma,
Tha invohssmas of the Group auditor included mastings with PaC ialy, an investigation of the risk analysis snd dscus-
sions with the PwC component audit team aboul work performed for significant awedit areas at the sub-consolidation
Barvinl,

Key audit matters

Ky audit matiers ars thoss matbers that, in our professional judgement, wens of mos? signiicandcs in our awdt of the
consaidated financial statements of the current penod. These mafoers were addressed in the contead of our awdit of the
consclidabed finarcial slabemants & 8 whols, and in faming cur cpimion theseon, and wae 4o nol provide & sepanate
opinion on thess matiers.

Yaluation of inventory

Key audit matter Hew cur audit addressed the key awdil matter
Th vailuatesn of inveeiony o cormidansd & Ky audil matier  In asedaing the reasonableneas of the provisesn Ror wiile-
sl e Bize of invecdory Bul ales e nature of e downe, wa parformed the olowing sudi| peccadune:.

judpements made by management when assessing e
vl of provisacn fer wiiln-dovwns

Wia radar o page B0 [malenal sooounbng and velaabon w We gainad an understanding of management's

policies, note 2.9 mventories) and page 67 (note 13 knven- processes and leshed e shenbfied ey conlmoks
1ories). asscciabed with ivveriony.

CARLO GAVAZZ| GROUP

81



Carlo Gavazzi Group

Report of the Statutory Auditor

82

- e assessed the appropristensss of the mathodod-
ofy used io caloulate the provison held agains! in-
WGy

" Wil ais s T codson blorsds ol Mo g-
manls assumplions and verified the madel Tor
mathamatcal accuracy.

L] ‘o teshed thar the srvenlorny values &0 nol exosed
B bl rdalidisde valus By SeMCIRg RamEkes Bnd
comparing the actal sales vakue loss saling costs
to the vabue held in inventory,

On s basis of T procsdunss wi parformsd, W oon=
clisdad thal B assumplions made and T ESgements ap-
phed in relabion & the provisicon Re aTie-cowns s red-
monabls,

Oher information

Tha Board of Direciors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprses the infomation included
o he Gnnial feport, bl doed ol nclude the Srencal taleenents, e cordobdated nancial talements and o gudi-
ROrE raporta. thanson.

Gwr apinion cn the consolidated financial statements does not cowver the ofher information and we do nol sxpress any
form of assurance conclusion Teneon.

in connection with our audit of the consoldated Snancial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other information
and, in doing a0, conakder whathar the ofher formaiien b mabedially inconasteni with the consclidaied finarcial giate-
ments o our knowlsdge oblainesd in the aud, or otherwiae appeans o be mabsially misstated.

H, baserd on the work we have performed, we condlude hat thers i3 a matenal misstatemenl of this other infomation, we
ana neguined 1o repord that tack. Wa hasve nodhersg 1o meport i this regard.

Baard of Directors’ responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Direclors is rapcnsitde for the preparation of the consclidated financal stalements, which give & Fus and
fakr view in accordance with IFRS ard the provisions of Swiss law, and for such internall control as the Board of Direclors
dtedTrings B nbcosEary o enable the proparation of consobdated Snancial statemaents that ase fres from material mis-
siatamant, whather diss 16 fraud of @,

In preparing the consobdaied francial statements, the Baard of Dimscacrns is responaible for asassaing the Group’s abdity
0 condinus 0% & going concam, dsclosing, 08 applicable, matiors related %o going concem and using the going concsm
bashs of accounting unkess the Boand of Dinectors sither indends o liguidate the Groug oF 10 Chass OpBMtons, of has no
vl lic allemative bul b do so

Auditor's. responsibllities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Dwr obyotives & 1o obilnn reasonabhe assumnos about whather the consobdaied fnancial slabemants as a whols ane
ingen from malerial misstalement, whether dus 1o fraud of emor, @nd o G400 an sudiors repon thal ndudes our cpifan.
Regonable assurance is a high kel of sesurancs, bud =B ndl o guaranbes thal an auds conduched in accordance with
Ewiss law, 15As and S4-CH will always detect o material misstatemaent when it cxists. Misstalements can arse from
irarud oF geror and are considened malenial i, mdividually of in e aggregats, they could reascnably be expecied o influ-
wny e scoramic deasins of users Wken an b bass of thss corobdated fmancal stalsmants.
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A further description of our respormibiliSes for the sudit of e consolidated financial stalements is localsd on EXPERT-
suissa’s wobsie: hilptweew, saparisssse. chisn/audi-raport. This desonption forms: an integral pat of owr report

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In @cccedance with article T28a paragraph 1 fem 3 CO0 and PS-CH B30, v confiemm that an internal controd system axists
wtach Furs. besen derpegrand for She propuration of they cormolciated Srancial stalemants sccoeding o the radnaciors of e
Board of Direclors.

W recommend thad the consolidated financial statements submitbed 1o you be approved.

ProewaterhousaCoopars AG

/ ]
Thomars I8N Danisl Wyss
Lioensed audit expert Linenessd awdit eopert
Auchtor in charge
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(in CHF 1 000) Notes 2023 2022
Income

Dividend income 9 234 10075
Interest income - subsidiaries 21 -
Total income 9 255 10 075
Expenses

Personnel expense 6 (1139) (434)
Other operating expense (69) (65)
Bank fees (56) (120)
Expense recharge - subsidiaries (350 -
Provision for investments - (5 000)
Total expenses (1614) (5619)
Profit before taxes 7 641 4 456
Direct taxes (9) (31)
Profit for the year 7 632 4 425

See notes to financial statements.
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Balance Sheets

at March 31
(in CHF 1 000) Notes 2023 2022
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5274 13 411
Fixed deposits 14 000 -
Other accounts receivable - subsidiaries 3350 9921
Total current assets 22 624 23332
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 2 35636 35636
Total non-current assets 35636 35636
Total assets 58 260 58 968
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Other short-term liabilities - third parties - 18
Provisions - taxes 12 12
Accrued expenses 697 490
Total current liabilities 709 520
Total liabilities 709 520
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 3,4 10 661 10 661
Legal capital reserves
Reserves from capital contributions 38 38
Statutory retained earnings 2150 2150
Voluntary retained earnings
Free reserves 36 000 36 000
Available earnings - profit brought forward 1070 5174
Available earnings - profit for the year 7 632 4 425
Total shareholders’ equity 57 551 58 448
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 58 260 58 968

See notes to financial statements.
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(in CHF 1 000)

Available earnings

Balance March 31, 2021 4 866
Transfer from free reserves 8 837
Dividend paid (8 529)
Profit for the year 2021/22 4 425
Balance March 31, 2022 9 599
Dividend paid (8 529)
Profit for the year 2022/23 7 632
Balance March 31, 2023 8702
Proposal of the Board of Directors for 2022/23 regarding transfer of free reserves

Transfer from free reserves to available earnings 36 000
To be carried forward -
Free reserves per balance sheet 36 000
Proposal of the Board of Directors for 2022/23 regarding appropriation of available earnings

Distribution of dividend

- 1600 000 registered shares at CHF 2.40 per share 3840
-390 710 bearer shares at CHF 12.00 per share 4 688
To be carried forward 174
Available earnings per balance sheet 8702
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for the years ended March 31

All amounts are in CHF 1 000 unless
otherwise stated.

1. General principles

These financial statements have been prepared
according to the Swiss Law on Accounting and
Financial Reporting (Title 32 of the Swiss Code of
Obligations).

2. Investments

Details of the subsidiaries held by Carlo Gavazzi
Holding AG and major changes during the year are
included in note 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Investments in subsidiaries are
recorded at cost value at the time of recognition.
Investments are valued individually unless they are
grouped together because of their similarity

as members of a group for valuation.

The investments are valued by comparing the
carrying value with the net equity of the subsidiary
and when required, a provision is made.

Shareholdings of members of the Board of Directors

Daniel Hirschi Stefano Premoli Trovati

3. Share capital

The Company’'s share capital is divided into
registered shares of CHF 3.00 each and bearer
shares of CHF 15.00 each. Each share carries one
vote. The registered share capital amounts to

CHF 4 800 divided into 1 600 000 registered shares
of CHF 3.00 each (2022: 1 600 000 of CHF 3.00 each].
The paid-in bearer share capital amounts to

CHF 5861 divided into 390 710 bearer shares of
CHF 15.00 each (2022: 390 710 of CHF 15.00 each).
There are no restrictions in the Company’s statutes
concerning the registration of registered shares.
Under Swiss law, a company can hold up to a
maximum of 10% of its own shares. All shares are
entitled to receive dividends.

4. Significant shareholders and their
shareholdings

This note has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of article 663c of the Swiss Code of
Obligations (SCO).

Federico Foglia Yolanta de Cacqueray Vittorio Rossi

at March 31, 2023 Chairman Vice-Chairman Member Member Member Total
Number of bearer shares - - 911 - - 911
In percentage of share capital - - 0.13 - - 0.13
In percentage of voting rights - - 0.04 - - 0.04
Value of shares (in CHF 1 000) - - 282 - - 282
Valeria Gavazzi Stefano Premoli Trovati Federico Foglia Daniel Hirschi
at March 31, 2022 Chairman Vice-Chairman Member Member Total
Number of bearer shares * - 911 - 911
In percentage of share capital : - 0.13 - 0.13
In percentage of voting rights * - 0.04 - 0.04
Value of shares (in CHF 1 000) . - 254 - 254
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(*] At March 31, 2023 and 2022, Valeria Gavazzi,
Chairman, personally owned nil bearer shares and
nil registered shares. In addition, Valeria Gavazzi
indirectly controls 1 469 350 registered shares and
834 bearer shares with 41.47% of the share capital
and 73.85% of the voting rights.

In addition, at March 31, 2023 and 2022, the mother,
Uberta Gavazzi, Zug, owned 94 000 registered
shares and 4 495 bearer shares (corresponding to
3.28% of the share capital and 4.95% of the voting
rights). Uberta Gavazzi passed away on April 6, 2023
and her shares are currently controlled by

Stefano Premoli Trovati, the Executor of her estate.

Apart from these shareholders, there are no other
major shareholders known to the Company holding
more than 3% of the voting rights.

Federico Foglia will inherit an additional 135 bearer
shares from the estate of his late father, however,
the estate has not yet been distributed.

Shareholdings of members of Group Management
At March 31, 2023 and 2022, the members of Group
Management held no shares in the Company.

5. Securities, guarantees and pledges

Guarantees issued in favor of subsidiary
companies and affiliates amounted to CHF 1 425
(2022: CHF 1 460).

The Company is a member of a VAT group and is
therefore jointly and severably liable for the
payment of the VAT liabilities of the other members
of the Swiss VAT group.

6. Full-time equivalents and personnel expense
The Company has no employees. The personnel
expense includes the compensation of the Board of
Directors.

7. Events after the balance sheet date

There were no events subsequent to the balance

sheet date that require adjustment to or disclosure
in the financial statements.
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Report of the statutory auditor

to the General Meeting of Carlo Gavazzi Holding AG
Steinhausen

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Cpinion

Wi b mudited the financeal statements of Cado Gavazn Holding AG [The Company), whach comprise the statement of
ircoms, the balance sheet a5 ot 31 Mardh 3023 and noles for the yoar then ended, including o sumemarny of significant
BELHUMNNG Policed

Iy cair opanican, T financad statoments (pages 56 1o 90 8a af 31 March 2023 comply wilh Swiss liny and the Company’'s
articles of Incorponaticn.

Bxsis for opinion

Wi conduchsd our SR I accordancs with Swits law ard Sviss Standards on Audiing {SA-CH). Dur responsdlilias
under those proviasons and slandands ans further descrbed n e “Audilor's rapanabailies Tor the et of ha nancial
statemants’ section of our report. YWe are independent of the Company in acoordance with the provisions of Swiss law
and the regquiremonis. of the Swiss audl prodesson, and we have ulllled cur other el res ponsld iies i Beoondancs

Wi bssliiesn that the sudit evidancs we havs shiamed is sufficent and apprognate 1o provide a basis for ok oparen,
Owr awdit approach

Materiality
The scops of cur sudil was nfluenced by cur apphcation of malerialy. Our sudil cpirson aims o provids reasorable
asgurance that the financial stlatements are free from matenial misstatermant. Misstalements. may anss due 5o frawd or

wnee, They are considered maleral i, indiddually of in aggregate, they cculd reasonally be sapecied o nfluencs e
Bconamic decitions of uleds talken on the bakis of the fnancial statemnants.

Based on o professional jdgement, e delemened certain quantitato thresholds for manesalily, inchiding e oemsnll
mafesrality for the financial statements as a whole a5 sed out in The table below. These, logether with qualitative consider-
mtions, halpad us 10 Selsrming T soops of cur audit and tha natune, tming and aatent of our B proosdures. and 1o
avikiate the effect of misstabements. both ndrddually and in aggregate. on the finncsl statemenls Ba @ whcks,

Cverall materiality CHF il

Benshmark applied hinl AR

mhh{ﬂﬂmtjm Vi chosa ril BSSeis &S i Benchimark BECaUSE, i our Ve, it i the banch-

raark apglied bk &gainal which the parformands of B ety I8 Mo oommanly msdadunsd
and is a generally sccegied benchmark.

‘W agreed with the Audit Commities that we woukd nepor to them misstatemsnts above CHF 15000 identified during
our awdit as well a3 any misstalements below that amount which, n o view, warmanted reporting for gualative reasans.

PricevaberhouseConpers AG, Dammsirasse 21, Postlach, G0z Sug, Switzerland
Telefon: +41 58 7o2 68 00, ww. pwoach

= s e oot e, Sl & Tk O i ol Pt e ™ ot oo, i O] e iy o e L e e e el d el ey
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Audit soope

Wi desgned our audkt by determining matenality and sssessng the nsis of matenal msstaiement in tha financial siabe-
maris. In particilar, v considered whare sulbiective udgemaents ware made. for example, in reapec] of sigrican] sc-
countng astimates that mvwobed making assumpions and considenng fufure events. thal ase inhsnently uncerain. A4s in
all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management ovwenmide of inbermal oontrols, iRclueding among other matiers
conmcnraton of stwith thide wis vicencn of bias thel reprasented o ek of maderil mesiaemen dus fo fraod

Wi bdored e soops of cur @udil in ofder ba parfonm suthcnnt work o anabls us o pioads an opreon on T Enanceal
sabernents as a whale, taking into acoouwn the struciuns of the Company, the sccounting processes and conirols, and
fthe inclustry i which the Company operates,

Keay audit matters
W s dtarrranad $hat Ssere ane no key asdt maittsm o communicate inosur mepon.

Criher information

Tha Board of Directors & mesponsitbe Tor the othes informnartion. The other infomnation comprises: the information included
ir the mnnial repar, bul doas nol includs e Srancsl staiamants, e remuneration rmport and cur sudilons mpors
tharecn.

Dwir apinion on the inancial slalemants doss nol cover the other informuation and we & nol exprses any form of aesur-
mnce conohsion thereon.

In connaection with cur audil of Be Ainancial statements, cur responsibdity is 1o read the cther imformation and, in deoing
20, consider whalhwar e ofhar rdormabion & malerially incomssien? with the Enancal stalements of cur knoaledge ob-
tained in the audit, or oharaiss appears o ba moreialy misstabed.

I, based on the work we have periommed, we condude thal thene s a matenal messiasement of this other information, we
mno requined to report that fact. We hawe nothing 1o report in this regard.

Baard of Directors’ redponsibilities for the financial stalemaents
Tha Beard of Direciors @ reaponsble for the prsparation of the finandal slabements n scodidance with the provissrs of
Swiss law and the Company's articles of inccrporation, and for sudh intemal control as the Board of Direcions delermines

= ripcassary bo enable the preparation of iingnoal statemesis thal ane fres from matenal mssiabemant, whathar dun o
Hriud oF BTy

In proparing the Enancial stxiemants, e Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability o con-
finue &S @ gosng conoan, declosing, as applicable, matiers related bo going concem and using Te going concesm basis
of moccaunting unbeess the Boand of Denectors aithr intends 10 bguidate the Company of b CRESE OPBNEEons, of has no
vipalmtic allormative bul fo do so

Awditor's responsibilities for the audit of the finanolal statements

Dwr objechives ans 1o oblnan reasonable sssumnGs about whothsr the Snanoal stalements 6s & whols ane free from ma-
torial misabitemen], whathsr dus o freud of mor, and 10 e &n Bedtor's repor thal includes cur opinion. Reascnable
asarance is a heagh level of msurance, butl = ol a guarantess that an midit conduched m accordancs with Swiss law and
EA-CH will abways deted o material misstalement when @ acists. Misstalements can anse from freud or ermor and s

cxnfichiviid Fr sl f ond rcuslly of in Bl Gggiisgabs. Ty could nnasdnably B apacind 10 oEuanice S Corire: de-
Gisions of users thken on the badis of Tose ineni=al stalemants,

A further description of cur responaibilities for the sudit of e finencial statements is losated on EXPERTaunas's web-
site: hifpfwasw auperisuisse chien'sudit-neport. This desonpion forms. @n mlegral part of our neport.
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Report of the Statutory Auditor

Report on other legal and regulatory requiremeants

In moooedanos with article T28a paragraph 1 dem 3 0O and PS-CH 880, weo confirm that an intesmal oontrol syshem exists
wiich has bean Sesagned for the preparlion of the Srancial stalsments Socording o the ininuctons of B Board of Di-
recions.

Ve further confirm thal the proposed appeopriation of avaiable eamings and resermes comples with Seiss e and $e
Company's arichs of ncorporation. We recommand that the financial statements submitbed 1o you be approved,

Prazavealadhoma Conpars AG

/ ¥

Thomars I8 Danisd Wiyss
Liconsed audd sxpari Licareed msdit axpart
Auchtor in changs

Zug, 21 Jurm 2023
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Carlo Gavazzi Group

Group Companies

Group

Headquarters

Switzerland

CARLO GAVAZZI HOLDING AG

+41 41 747 45 25

gavazzilcarlogavazzi.ch

Automation Components

Headquarters

Italy

CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION SPA

+39 02 931 761

infoldgavazziautomation.com

Sourcing Companies

China CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION (KUNSHAN] CO LTD +86 5125763 9310 cgak(@carlogavazzi.cn

Italy CARLO GAVAZZI CONTROLS SPA +39 0437 3558 11 controlsldgavazziacbu.it
Lithuania CARLO GAVAZZI INDUSTRI KAUNAS UAB +37037 328227 infoldgavazzi.lt

Malta CARLO GAVAZZI LTD +356 2360 1100 gavazzilcarlogavazzi.com.mt

National Sales Companies

Austria CARLO GAVAZZI GMBH +43 18884112 officeldcarlogavazzi.at
Belgium CARLO GAVAZZI NV/SA +3222574120 sales(dcarlogavazzi.be
Brazil CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMACAOQ LTDA +55 11 3052 0832 infoldcarlogavazzi.com.br
Canada CARLO GAVAZZI (CANADAJ INC +1 905 542 0979 gavazzildcarlogavazzi.com
China CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION (CHINA] CO LTD +86 7558369 9500 sales(dcarlogavazzi.cn
Denmark CARLO GAVAZZI HANDEL A/S +4589 60 61 00 handel(@gavazzi.dk

Finland CARLO GAVAZZI QY AB +358 9 756 2000 myyntidgavazzi.fi

France CARLO GAVAZZI SARL +33 149389860 french.team(@carlogavazzi.fr
Germany CARLO GAVAZZI GMBH +49 6151 81000 infoldgavazzi.de

Great Britain

CARLO GAVAZZI UK LTD

+44.1276 854110

sales(dcarlogavazzi.co.uk

Hong Kong CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION HONG KONG LTD +852 2626 1332 info@carlogavazzi.hk

Italy CARLO GAVAZZI SPA +39 029317 61 info@gavazziacbu.it

Malaysia CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION (M) SDN BHD +60 3 7842 7299 infoldgavazzi-asia.com

Mexico CARLO GAVAZZI MEXICO SA de CV +52 55 5373 7042 mexicosales(@carlogavazzi.com

Netherlands

CARLO GAVAZZI BV

+31251 2293 45

infodcarlogavazzi.nl

Norway CARLO GAVAZZI AS +47 35930800 post(dgavazzi.no

Portugal CARLO GAVAZZI UNIPESSOAL LDA +351 21 361 7060 carlogavazzildcarlogavazzi.pt
Singapore CARLO GAVAZZI AUTOMATION SINGAPORE PTE LTD +65 6746 6990 infoldcarlogavazzi.com.sg
Spain CARLO GAVAZZI SA +34 94 480 40 37 gavazzildgavazzi.es

Sweden CARLO GAVAZZI AB +46 548511 25 infoldcarlogavazzi.se
Switzerland CARLO GAVAZZI AG +41 41747 45 35 infodcarlogavazzi.ch

USA CARLO GAVAZZI INC +1 847 465 6100 sales(dcarlogavazzi.com

CARLO GAVAZZ| GROUP
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Information for Investors

Share price
1.4.2022-
31.3.2023
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Information for Investors

2022/23 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
Registered shares
Nominal value CHF 3
Shares issued Number 1 600 000 1600 000 1600 000 1600 000 1600 000
Share of capital % 45.0 45.0 45.0 45.0 45.0
Share of voting rights % 80.4 80.4 80.4 80.4 80.4
Share price The registered shares are not traded on the SIX Swiss Exchange.
Bearer shares
Nominal value CHF 15
Shares issued Number 390710 390 710 390 710 390 710 390 710
Share of capital % 55.0 55.0 55.0 55.0 55.0
Share of voting rights % 19.6 19.6 19.6 19.6 19.6
Share price as of March 31 CHF 310 279 193 A 2505
Share price - high CHF 320 296 204 285 358
Share price - low CHF 256 193 146 170 229
Average daily volume Number 342 717 K] 439 271
P/E Ratio Factor 7.8 9.0 11.4 24.0 16.9
Basic earnings per share CHF 39.7 31.0 17.0 8.5 19,1
Book value per share CHF 186 163 149 127 137
Stock market capitalization CHF 1000 220 320 198 288 137 167 144 985 181 231
- in percentage of revenue % 105.1 108.1 92.6 97.6 116.9
- in percentage of equity % 167.0 170.6 129.1 160.6 185.9
Dividend per share (ordinary) CHF 12* 12 12 - 12.0
- dividend yield % 3.9* 4.3 Wi - 4.7
- total pay-out CHF 1 000 8 529* 8 529 8 529 - 8 529
- pay-out ratio % 30.2* 38.7 70.7 - 79.6
*Proposal of the Board of Directors
Restriction of voting rights
There are no limits on registration of voting rights.
Financial calendar
Shareholders’ meeting 2022/23: July 25, 2023
Interim report 2023/24: November 23, 2023

Press and financial analysts’ meeting 2023/24:
Shareholders’ meeting 2023/24:

June 27, 2024

July 30, 2024
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CARLO GAVAZZ]

CARLO GAVAZZI HOLDING AG
Sumpfstrasse 3
CH-6312 Steinhausen, Switzerland
Phone: +41 41 747 45 25
Internet: www.carlogavazzi.com
E-Mail: gavazzi(dcarlogavazzi.ch
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